Select Board Meeting Packet
April 4, 2022

This is the Select Board preliminary
preparation information packet. The
content of this package is subject to
change between when it is released
and the start of the Select Board
meeting. Such changes will not be
posted to the web site before the
meeting. If you see an item or items in
the preliminary preparation package
that are important to you, please
attend the meeting in person.



TOWN OF GROTON Select Board

173 Main Street

Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237 Rebecca H. Pine, Chair
Tel: (978) 448-11 1_1 . Alison 8. Manugian, Vice Chair
Fax: (978) 448-1115 Peter 8. Cunningham, Clerk

Joshua A. Degen, Member
John F. Reilly, Member

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

SELECT BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2022

AGENDA
SELECT BOARD MEETING ROOM
2" FLOOR
GROTON TOWN HALL
7:00 P.M. Announcements and Review Agenda for the Public
7:05 P.M. Fublic Comment Period
I 7:06 P.M. Town Manager’'s Report

1. Update on Fiscal Year 2023 Proposed Operating Budget
2. Update on Select Board Meeting Schedule Through Spring Town Meeting

Il 7:10 P.M. items for Select Board Consideration and Action

1. Vote to Add Ballot Question on Acceptance of Town Clerk Charter Amendment to the
Ballot for the 2022 Annual Town Election

2. Consider Taking Positions on All Warrant Articles Contained in the 2022 Spring Town
Meeting Warrant

3. Consider Approval for a One Day Beer and Wine License for Salt and Light Café for a
Private Event on Saturday, April 16, 2022 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

. 7:15 P.M. Continuation of Public Hearing on the Warrant for the 2022 Spring Town Meeting
OTHER BUSINESS

ON-GOING ISSUES — Review and Informational Purposes ~ Brief Comments - Items May or May Not Be Discussed
Water Department — Manganese Issue

PFAS Issue at GDRSD High Schoot

Green Communities Application and Implementation

Florence Roche Elementary School Construction Project
ARPA Funding

moowp

SELECT BOARD LIAISON REPORTS
V. Minutes: Reguiarly Scheduled Meeting of March 28, 2022

V. 8:00 P.M. Executive Session #1 — Pursuant to M.G.L., c. 30A, §21(a), Clause 3 — “To discuss strategy
with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open meeting may have a detrimental
effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body and the chair so declares” -
Purposes — Collective Bargaining

Executive Session #2 — Pursuant to M.G.L.,, c. 30A, §21(a), Clause 7 — “To comply with, or act
under the authority of, any general or special law or federal grant-in-aid requirements” —
Purpose — Review, Approve, Consider the Release of Executive Session Minutes

ADJOURNMENT
Votes may be taken at any time during the meeting. The listing of topics that the Chair reasonably anticipates will be

discussed at the meeting is not intended as a guarantee of the topics that will be discussed. Not all topics listed may
in fact be discussed, and other topics not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.




TOWN OF GROTON Select Board

173 Main Street

Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237 Rebecca H. Pine, Chalr
Tel: {978) 448-1111 Alison S. Manugian, Vice Chair
Fax: (978) 448-1115 Peter S. Cunningham, Clerk

Joshua A. Degen, Member
John F. Reilly, Member

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

To: Select Board
From: Mark W. Haddad — Town Manager

Subject: Weekly Agenda Update/Report

Date: April 4, 2022

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT

In addition to the Town Manager's Report, Items for Select Board Consideration and Action and a
review of the On-going issues, there are three items scheduled on Monday’s Agenda. First, the Select
Board will be continuing the Public Hearing on the Warrant for the 2022 Spring Town Meeting. |
Enclosed with this report is the latest draft of the Warrant. We have invited the proponents of the |
Community Preservation Prescott Stone Project to the meeting to review their project. In addition, | |
expect to have the revised Citizens' Petition Article submitted by Monday’s meeting. Should that
happen, the Board will need to accept the revised Article. Second, we have scheduled an Executive
Session to deal with a Collective Bargaining issue. Finally, we have scheduled a second Executive
Session for the Board to review, approve and consider the release of previous Executive Session
Minutes. Dawn and | will send out those minutes, along with our recommendations on which minutes
should be released, under separate cover.

1. Contained in the Warrant will be the latest draft of the Fiscal Year 2023 Proposed Operating
Budget, along with the Budget Message from the Town Manager and Finance Commitiee. The
Finance Committee will be meeting earlier on Monday to take final action on the Budget. | will
report on that action at Monday’s meeting.

2. Please see the update to the Select Board’s Meeting Schedule through the Spring Town

Meeting:

Monday, April 11, 2022 -Finalize Warrant for 2022 Spring Town Meeting
-Consider Approval of Earth Removal Permit for
Fiorence Roche Construction Project

Monday, April 18, 2022 No Meeting (Holiday)

Monday, April 25, 2022 -Approve Annual Fuel Storage Permits

Saturday, April 30, 2022 2022 Spring Town Meeting



Select Board

Weekly Agenda Update/Report
April 4, 2022

page two

ITEMS FOR SELECT BOARD CONSIDERATION AND ACTION

1. Now that the Legislature has approved the Charter Amendment that would make the Groton
Town Clerk an appointed position, the next step in the process is to place a guestion on the
2022 Annual Town Election Ballot requesting that the voters approve the Charter Amendment
as well. To that end, | would respectfully request that the Board vote to add the following
question to the Ballot:

QUESTION 1:

Shall an Act passed by the General Court in the Year 2022, entitled "An Act Relative to the
Charter and the Town Clerk in the Town of Groton” be accepted?

2, During the Public Hearing, | would respectfully request that the Board consider taking positions
on the various Warrant Articles. We can discuss this further during the Public Hearing.

3. The Salt and Light Café has requested a One Day Beer and Wine License for a Private
Function to be held on Saturday, Apri 16, 2022 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. | would
respectfully request that the Board consider approving this License at Monday's meeting.

MWH/rib
enclosures



Revised: April 1, 2022

Warrant, Summary, and Recommendations

TOWN OF GROTON

2022 SPRING TOWN MEETING

Groton-Dunstable Middle School Auditorium
344 Main Street, Groton, Massachusetts 01450

Beginning Saturday, April 30, 2022 @ 9:00 AM

Attention — Voters and Taxpayers

Please bring this Report to Town Meeting

THE BUDGET HANDOUT FOR ARTICLE 515 AVAILABLE
IN THE BACK OF THE WARRANT




Introduction to Groton Town Meeting

Voters are familiar with casting ballots in local and state elections, but they have another
important civic duty in towns, the Town Meeting.

What is Town Meeting?

The Town Meeting is the legislative body in the town form of government in Massachusetts.
Town Meeting is a formal gathering of registered voters who propose, debate and vote on
measures. Groton holds at least two Town Meetings per year.

What is a warrant?

The warrant is the official notice to voters that a Town Meeting is scheduled. The warrant
includes the date, time, location and a description of each subject to be acted on at Town
Meeting. In Groton, the warrant must be posted in two public places and mailed to each
household 14 days in advance of Town Mesting. “The warrant must contain a sufficient
description of what is proposed so as to constitute an adequate warning to all the inhabitants
of the town.” “Every action taken at the meeting must be pursuant to some article in the
warrant and must be within the scope of such article.”

How does Town Meeting proceed?

Voters attending Town Meeting must first check in with the clerks and receive a voting card
which is required to vote. The meeting typically acts on the articles in the order they are
printed in the warrant. For each article, a main motion is made and seconded by voters and
placed by the moderator on the floor for debate. Permission of the moderator is required to
speak. The moderator presides and regulates the proceedings, decides all questions of order,
and calls and declares all votes. After debate has ended, the moderator will call for a vote by a
show of voter cards. If the vote is too close to call by sight or if seven voters immediately
question the moderator's declaration of the vote, the moderator will order a hand count to
confirm the vote.

Who can attend?

Town Meeting is open to the public. Only Groton voters are entitled to attend, speak and vote.
Non-voters may be required to sit in a separate section. Non-voters may ask the moderator to
speak on the topic of the debate.

How long is town meeting?

Town Meeting concludes when all articles on the warrant have been acted upon. Town
Meeting may conclude in one session or adjourn for subsequent sessions.

1 Town Meeting Time: A Handbook of Parliomentary Law (page 12} Johnson, Trustman and Wadsworth, Third Edition, 2001,
21d.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 1




Explanation of a Consent Agenda

A consent agenda is a procedure to group multiple main motions into a single motion for voting. A
consent agenda saves time by eliminating the reading of multiple motions and explanations when there
are no objections or questions. In Groton, a consent agenda generally consists of articles unanimously
supported by the Select Board and Finance Committee. Articles that change by-laws or introduce new
spending are typically not included. In this warrant, the Select Board has grouped articles in consent

agendas and labeled them for easy reference.

How Consent Agendas Work

As the first step to act on a consent agenda, the moderator will read the titles of the included articles. A
voter who wishes to remove an article from the consent agenda for separate debate and vote should
state “hold.” The held article will be set aside and acted on after the vote on the consent agenda. After
the meeting agrees on the contents of the consent agenda, there will be no debate and the moderator
will immediately call for a vote. Every motion included in the consent agenda will either pass or fail as a
group. Voters should read the warrant and review the proposed consent agendas to identify articles

they wish to remove for separate consideration.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 2




Town Meeting Access for Voters with Disabilities

Parking — Universally accessible parking spaces are available in the parking lot in front of
the Groton Dunstable Middle School South. There is a ramp providing access from the
parking lot to the front door of the Middle School.

Wheelchair Accessible & Companion Seating — Wheelchair spaces, seating for people
with mobility issues and companion seats are available in the center aisie on both sides

of the auditorium.

Sign Language — A Sign Language Interpreter will be provided for the hearing impaired,
upon request, at least one week prior to the meeting.

Speaking at Town Meeting — There will be volunteers available to bring hand-held
microphones to voters who have mobility issues or cannot stand in line and wait at the

microphones.
Restrooms — Accessible restrooms are available near the entrance to the auditorium.

Transportation to Town Meeting - The Council on Aging van will be available to Groton
residents attending Town Meetings at no charge. All riders will be at the meeting prior
to the start. The van is wheelchair accessible. Your reservation can be made by calling
the Senior Center at 978-448-1170. Seats will be filled on a first come, first serve basis.

Questions or concerns - If you or a member of your household has questions or would
like to request a sign language interpreter, please contact the Select Board'’s Office at
Town Hall at 978 448-1111 at least one week before the Town Meeting.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 3




SPRING TOWN MEETING WARRANT
APRIL 30, 2022

Middlesex, ss.
Commonwealth of Massachuseits
To any Constable in the Town of Groton

Greetings:

in the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby required to notify and warn said inhabitanis
of the Town of Groton qualified to vote on Town affairs to assemble in the Groton-Dunstable Middle School
Auditorium in said Town on Saturday, the thirtieth day of April, 2022 at Nine O'clock in the morning, to consider all
business other than the election of Town Officers and on the twenty-fourth day of May, 2022, between the hours
of 7:00 A.M. and 800 .M., at an adjourned session thereof at the following locations:

Precinct 1 The Groton Center Precincts 2 & 3 Middle School North Gymnasium
163 West Main Street 346 Main Street

to give their ballots for:

Vote for One Board of Assessors 3 Years
Vote for One Board of Health 3 Years
Vote for One Board of Health 1 Year
Vote for Two Select Board 3 Years
Vote for One Commissioner of Trust Funds 3 Years
Vote for Two Groton-Dunstable Regional School Committee 3 Years
Vote for One Groton Electric Light Commission 3 Years
Vote for Two Park Commission 3 Years
Vote for One Park Commission 1 Year
Vote for Two Planning Board 3 Years
Vote for One Sewer Commission 3 Years
Vote for Two Trustees of the Groton Public Library 3 Years
Vote for One Water Commission 3 Years
QUESTION 1:

Shall an Act passed by the General Court in the Year 2022, entitled "An Act Relative to the Charter and the Town
Clerk in the Town of Groton” be accepted?

YES NO

QUESTION 2:

NON-BINDING REFERENDUM — Should the Seal of the Town of Groton be modified by removing the words
“Holy Bible" from the image of the book in the center of the Seal, leaving the image of the book blank?

YES NO

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 4




ARTICLE LISTINGS

* Article 1: Hear Reports 6
* Article 2: Elected Officials Compensation 6
* Article 3: Wage and Classification Scheduile 6
* Article 4: Appropriate FY 2023 Contribution to the OPEB Trust Fund 7
** | Article 5: Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Operating Budget 7
Article 6: Fiscal Year 2023 Capital Budget 8
Article 7: Purchase Fire Engine to Replace Engine 5 12
Article 8: Purchase Voting Machine 13
Article 9: CPA Project Funding for Replacing Middle School Track 13
Article 10; | Community Preservation Funding Accounts 14

*** | Article 11: | Community Preservation Funding Recommendations 14
Article 12: | Zoning Amendment — Marijuana Establishments 17
Article 13: | Zoning Amendment — Performance Standards 17
Article 14: | Extend Center Sewer District 19
Article 15: | Electronic Voting Study Committee 20
Article 16: | Citizens' Petition — Age Restricted Housing Definition 20

=+ | Article 17: | Appropriate Funding to Offset Snow and Ice Deficit 21
##% | Article 18: | Transfer Within the Water Enterprise Fund 22
**++ | Article 19: | Transfer Within the Sewer Enterprise Fund 22
#*x | Article 20: | Transfer Within Four Corner Sewer Enterprise Fund 22
#+v 1 Article 21: | Transfer Within Cable Enterprise Fund 23
x4 | Article 22: | Prior Year Bills 23
**** | Article 23: | Establishment of Revolving Fund 23
**+ | Article 24: | Establishing Limits for Various Revolving Funds 24
Budget Report of the Town Manager and Finance Committee to Town Meeting 26

Appendix A — Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Operating Budget 35

Appendix B — Fiscal Year 2022 Wage and Classification Schedule 52

*Will be presented as one Consent Motion

**The Budget will be presented as one Motion

***The CPA Articles will be presented as one Motion
***Annual Consent Agenda. To be presented as one Motion

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page &




ARTICLE 1: HEAR REPORTS

To see if the Town will vote to hear and act on the report of the Select Board and other Town
Officers and Committees, or to take any other action relative thereto.

SELECT BOARD

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position

Summary: 7o hear reports of Town Boards, Committees and Commissions and fo accept the
annual report and other reports that may be presented to Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 2: ELECTED OFFICIALS’ COMPENSATION

To see if the Town will vote to set the compensation for the elected officials of the Town for the
ensuing year, or to take any other action relative thereto.

SELECT BOARD

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  To provide compensation for elected officials as proposed by the Town Manager. The
Town Clerk is proposed to receive a salary of $95,417 in FY 2023 and the Moderator is proposed to
receive a salary of $65 in FY 2023.

ARTICLE 3: WAGE AND CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE

To see if the Town will vote to amend and adopt for Fiscal Year 2023 the Town of Groton Wage
and Classification schedule as shown in Appendix B of this Warrant, or to take any other action relative
thereto.

SELECT BOARD
TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  The purpose of this Article is to set the wage and classification schedule for the three (3)
employees (Executive Assistant to the Town Manager, Human Resources Director and IT Director)
covered by the Personnel Bylaw. Under the policy of the Select Board, these employees receive the
same benefits as contained in the Town Supervisors’ Union Contract. These employees will receive a
2.5% cost-of-iving adjustment in Fiscal Year 2023.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 6




ARTICLE 4: APPROPRIATE FY 2023 CONTRIBUTION TO THE OPEB TRUST

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town
Manager, to be added to the Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability Trust Fund as authorized by
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 32B, Section 20, or to take any other action relative thereto.

SELECT BOARD
TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  The purpose of this article is to fund the Town’s OPEB Liability. The Select Board and
Finance Committee have adopted a funding policy for this purpose. One of the funding goals is to
commit to an annual appropriation to the Trust that would keep the Net Present Value Liability from
growing until such time as the Town can begin to pay down the liability. In Fiscal Year 2023, the
anticipated amount necessary for this purpose is estimated to be $181,000. This Article will seek an
appropriation of $181,000 from Free Cash to add fo the OPEB Liability Trust Fund,

ARTICLE 5: FISCAL YEAR 2023 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum or sums of money as may be necessary to defray the
expenses of the Town for the next Fiscal Year (2023), and act upon the budget of the Finance
Committee, or to take any other action relative thereto.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
SELECT BOARD
TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary: In accordance with Section 6 of the Town Charter, the Finance Committee conducts its
annual budget process by receiving the Town Manager's proposed bafanced budget on or before
December 31% meeting with department heads and boards; holding public budget hearings in
preparation for issuing its recommendations to Town Meeting, and presenting its budgef
recommendations at the Spring Town Meeting. The budget handout for this Article is contained in
Appendix A of this Warrant. Please also see the Finance Committee’s and Town Manager's Report
which includes the Finance Committee’s and Select Board’s recommendations.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 7




ARTICLE 6: FISCAL YEAR 2023 CAPITAL BUDGET

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town
Manager in Fiscal Year 2022 and thereafter, for the purpose of funding the Fiscal Year 2023 Capital
Budget, or to take any other action relative thereto.

TOWN MANAGER

Summary:  The following is the proposed Town Manager's Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2023;

ltem #1 — Pick-Up Truck $40,000 Highway

Summary: This is a scheduled replacement. The average life of a pick-up truck is approximately 7
years. Replacing one vehicle every couple of years will allow the fleet fo stay in good shape. Thisis a
front-fine pick-up used for day-to-day operations as well as snow plowing. Due to supply chain issues
and availability, this item will be purchased in Fiscal Year 2022.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Item #2 — Intermediate Truck $75,000 Highway

Summary:  This size truck was introduced into the Town's fleet to save wear and tear on the dump
trucks and pickup trucks by not overloading them. This has worked out very well. They are used
almost daily for tasks such as patching and road construction projects right up to plowing roads. They
do not have sanders on them, just plows. They take up less room and eliminate the need for a large
vehicle which makes it safer for the employees as well as the motoring public. The scheduled
replacement vehicle will be 15 years old at the time of replacement. Due fo supply chain issues and
availability, this item will be purchased in Fiscal Year 2022.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

item #3A — Dump Truck $22,000 Highway
Summary: In Fiscal Year 2018, Town Meeting approved a bond for $185,000 to purchase a new
Dump Truck for the Highway Department, with the intent to pay it back over five years. The

appropriation this year is the fifth of five payments for this truck.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 8




Item #3B — Dump Truck $40,000 Highway

Summary:  Last year's Annual Town Meeting appropriated $185,000 to replace one of our older
Dump Trucks. The Town borrowed these funds through a State House Note and will pay it off over five
years. Fiscal Year 2023 will be the first of five payments.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

ltem #4 — Municipal Building Repairs $25,000 Town Facilities

Summary:  This appropriation will be used to continue to maintain all municipal buildings by
performing various maintenance activities fo prevent major breakdowns in the Town’s building
infrastructure. Priorities continue to change when it comes to the minor repairs and upgrades in the
municipal buildings. A set line item which is separate from minor capital alfows for flexibility. Furnaces,
a/c units, flooring and painting are some of the small items this capital program handles.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

item #5 — IT Infrastructire $40,000 Town Facilities

Summary:  This item in the Capital Budget was established fen years ago and has been very
successful. In Fiscal Year 2023, the following items will be purchased/upgraded with this allocation:
10 replacement computers;, Replace aging servers and storage arrays; Investment fo expand the
network and keep equipment and maintenance costs current, and network switch upgrades and
increased wirefess coverage.

Select Board:

Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Item #6 — Fork Lift/Mini Loader $60,000 Transfer Station

Summary: This is a vital piece of equipment at the transfer station. It is used fo load the two balers

located at the facility. In addition, it is used fo move the various recyclables around the facifity. This
piece of equipment is a work horse and this should be considered a scheduled replacement.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 9




Item #7 — Upgrade Fire Alarm System $50,000 Library

Summary: DPW, Fire, and Impact Fire Services conducted a thorough inspection of the library's
20+ year old fire system, with many components 25 years old in 2024. All of it needs upgrading. the
main fire panel, 30 smoke detectors, 9 pull stations, 7 duct detectors, various relay modules, 20
audio/visual units, 8 visual only units, plus 32 sprinkler heads, engineering and design. Install new
Keltron box and re-establish lost connection to the Groton Fire Dept., saving the library from paying for
a monthly monitoring service as well as saving 1-2 minutes of time alerting the Fire Dept. in an
emergency.

Select Board:
Finance Commitiee: Recommended Unanimously

Item #8 — Upgrade Building Alarm System $15,0600 Library

Summary: The burglary alarm system was installed in 1999 and will be 25 years old in 2024.
Jasonics owner said some of the Library’s security detectors are "ancient” , with several installed too
high to be useful. This project includes: replacing the control panel, both entry keypads, all 17 motion
delectors, and exit door contacts (if needed). The existing wiring would be reconfigured so that each
device is on a separate zone (as opposed fo now, with 9 detectors on 1 "top floor" zone.) Newer panic
buttons would be tied in. The Library receives numerous false alarms every year and the system needs
to be upgraded.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Item #9 — Envelope Repairs $18,000 Library

Summary: This is the last identified need still unaddressed from the 2018 building envelope study
on how to keep water from entering the building: Repair/replace sealant around every exterior door and
aluminum window (up 3 stories), as well as scrape, prime, caulk, and paint all 20 wood window sashes.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

ltem #10 — Replace Emergency Exit Doors $19,000 Library

Summary:  For years, water puddied outside the west facing children’s room emergency exit and
water leaked in under the doors. With all new roof and water drainage, the water is no longer coffecting
here. Carpeting inside the door was replaced with tile, and now everything is staying dry. But years of
water infiffration have rusted out the bottom of these metal doors and the bottoms are flaking off into
dust. Commercial-grade metal doors, panic bars, and hardware all need to be replaced as soon as
possible.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 10




item #11 — Master Plan Update $100,000 Planning Board

Summary: The Town of Groton’s Master Plan expired in September 2021. The Planning Board
anticipates requiring a minimum of $150,000 for the procurement of professional planning consultants
to assist with the daunting task of preparing the next 10-year Master Plan. The proposed amount of
$150,000 is based on recent examples from Littleton and Miflbury. The plan is to appropriate $100,000
in FY 2023 and any needed funds (approximately $50,000) in FY 2024. It is anticipated that the final
stages of the Master Plan update will be completed in the early part of FY 2025.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

ltem #12 — Property Improvements $25,000 Park Department

Summary:  The Park Commission has been working over the past several years developing a
strategy to address deficiencies in the various Park Department Properifes located throughout Groton.
By appropriating $25,000 each year, the Park Commission can develop a capital improvement program
that will alfow them to keep our various park locations in good shape and avoid a major construction
project.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Item #13 — Police Cruisers $114,000 Police Department

Summary:  Purchase of two police cruisers and related equipment to replace cruisers that are no
fonger cost effective fo maintain. This allows for lesser mileage per year, belter maintenance
scheduling, assignment of cars to officers and for a programmed replacement schedule that ensures
line cars are rotated out at reasonable mileage and wear. Un-marked cars are rotated in the same
fashion.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Hem #14 — Cameras/Key Card Access $25,000 Police Department

Summary:  Cameras will be installed in Celf Block Hall "blind spots”. An exterior securify camera
for the back of the building and the communications tower. Hardwired Card Key reader for a Cell
Block/Sallyport fo replace failing battery units. New readers in each of the cell holding areas from Celf
Check documentation and the records room.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 11




Item #15 — Pool Improvements $60,000 Country Club
Summary:  This funding will be used to replace the deck at the Country Club Fool.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

TOWN MANAGER

ARTICLE 7: PURCHASE FIRE ENGINE TO REPLACE ENGINE §

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town
Manager, to purchase and equip a new Engine 5 for the Fire Department, and all costs associated and
related thereto, or to take any other action relative thereto.

TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  Engine 5 was purchased in 2007 and was slafed to be replaced in 2028. Unfortunately,
during an ice storm this past winter, Engine 5 was involved in an accident causing over $95,000 worth
of damage that would be covered by insurance. Based on the age and wear and tear on the Engine 5,
it does not make sense to invest the $95,000 in an engine with 5 years of useful life left. The Town
Manager and Fire Chief have recommended using the insurance funds and investing it in a new Fire
Engine for the Fire Department. The estimated cost of the new vehicle is approximately $800,000 (cost
to the Town of approximately $700,000 fo paid back over 20 years (estimated life of a new Fire Truck).

ARTICLE 8: PURCHASE VOTING MACHINE

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town
Manager, for the purpose of purchasing a voting tabulator to be used by the Town to tabulate votes
during all elections, and all costs associated and related thereto, or to take any other action relative
thereto.

TOWN CLERK

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

20322 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 12




Summary:  This request for a minor capital item is to purchase a new voting tabulator to tabufate
votes cast in Grofon's newly created Sub-Precinct 3A. Sub-Precinct 3A was created by the
Massachusetts House of Representatives during decennial redistricting in December, 2021. Under
State election regulations, the sub-precinct’s votes must be counted separately, and on a unique
tabulator (if tabulators are used). Groton currently uses Imagecast Precinct (ICP) vote tabufators. This
request is to authorize the purchase of an additional Imagecast Precinct Tabulator. Please note that the
use of this machine may be considered to be a local mandate by the State Auditor, and if so declared,
the cost will be reimbursed to the Town.

ARTICLE 9: CPA RECOMMENDATION — ADDITIONAL FUNDING SCHOOL TRACK

To see if the Town will vote to adopt and approve the recommendation of the Community
Preservation Committee established pursuant to Chapter 44B of the General Laws, for additional funds
to supplement funds previously appropriated to construct a new Middle School Track, and all costs
associated and related thereto, and to implement such recommendation, borrow pursuant to any
applicable statue and/or appropriate a sum or sums of money from the Community Preservation Fund
established pursuant to Chapter 44B of the General Laws, said funds to be expended by the Town
Manager, or to take other action relative thereto.

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee:

Summary:  The 2021 Spring Town Meeting appropriated funds to relocate the Middle School Track
in conjunction with the construction of a new Florence Roche Elementary School. The original estimate
of $1.4 million will not be sufficient based on the most recent review of the project. Construction costs
have risen af an unprecedented rate. Supply and demand chalfenges, global shipping, labor shortages,
and a high volume of work are all having an impact on construction costs, and alf projects and sectors
are being affected. While the Project included design, estimating, and escalation contingencies in
December 2020, these contingencies cannot absorb the recent estimated costs received. The purpose
of this Article will be to appropriate the additional funds needed to complete the project.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 13




ARTICLE 10: COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUNDING ACCOUNTS

To see if the Town will vote to make the following appropriations from the Community
Preservation Fund: Allocation of Community Preservation Funds to the following sub accounts:

CPC Operating Expenses: $ 20,500
Open Space Reserve: $ 88,741
Historic Resource Reserve: $ 88,741
Community Housing Reserve: $ 88,741
Unallocated Reserve: $600,687

or to take any other action relative thereto.

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This is an accounting procedure that is necessary so that the Community Preservation
Committee will have access to the funds raised during Fiscal Year 2023. Except for the CPC Operating
Expenses, hone of these funds will be spent without additional approval at Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 11: COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS

To see if the Town will vote to adopt and approve the recommendations of the Community
Preservation Committee for Fiscal Year 2023, and vote to implement such recommendations by
appropriating a sum or sums of money from the Community Preservation Fund established pursuant to
Chapter 44B of the General Laws, and by authorizing the Select Board, with the approval of the
Community Preservation Committee, to acquire, by purchase, gift or eminent domain, such real
property interests in the name of the Town, or enforceable by the Town, including real property
interests in the form of permanent affordable housing restrictions and historical preservation restrictions
that will meet the requirements of Chapter 184 of the General Laws, as may be necessary or proper to
carry out the foregoing, or to take any other action relative thereto.

CPC Proposal A: Conservation Fund — FY 2023 $400,000

Summary: The Conservation Commission is requesting $400,000 to be added to the Conservation
Fund to preserve open space, protect water resources and wildlife habitat, and preserve fand for
agricuffural, recreational, and forestry activities. This Fund affows the Town fo move quickly in the
event a priority parcel becomes available. This Fund has been used fo purchase Conservation
Restrictions, Agricultural Preservation Restrictions, and fee ownership of conservation land. The goal
is to maintain an amount between $750K and $1 million in the Fund. As of 1/12/22, the Conservation
Fund balance was at $651,184. The full amount to be paid from the Unallocated Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 14




CPC Proposal B: Prescott Stone Project $6,000

Summary:  The Groton History Center and the Historic Commission is requesting $6,000 in CPA
funds to provide a secure and stable setting for the historical Prescott Stone. It will be located at the
Governor George Boutwell House in the side yard, protected from weather and available for viewing by
Groton's citizens. The full amount to be paid from the Historic Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended (6 In Favor, 1 Abstained — Perkins)

CPC Proposal C: Nashua River Walk $60,154

Summary: The Grofon Trails Committee is requesting $60,154 in CPA funds for a proposed
riverwalk. This will include a fully accessible trail that will go along the Nashua River in the J. Harry
Rich State Forest for a distance of about 0.25 miles and will connect with the simitar John Tinker Trail.
The trail will provide a wonderful forest experience along one of the most beautiful stretches of the
Nashua River for people of alf ages and abilities, including children in stroflers, those using walkers,
and bikers. It will include two rest areas with benches and a farger observation area at the terminus.
The observation area will have two handicap tables and four benches as well as high quality
educational signs. The full amount to be paid from the Open Space Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

CPC Proposal D: Prescott Elevator Design and Engineering $80,000

Summary: Friends of Prescott is requesting $80,000 in CPA funds for the architectural and
engineering work that needs to be done upfront in order fo be able to qualify for a Municipal Americans
with Disabilities Act Improvement grant to install a passenger efevator in the town’s historic Prescott
School. The elevator will provide handicap access to all three floors within the building. The full
amount to be paid from the Historic Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended (5 In Favor, 2 Abstained — Eliot, Easom)

CPC Proposal E: Housing Coordinator $53,543

Summary:  This application is requesting $53,543 in CPA funding from the Communily Housing
category to fund the wages and benefits of the Housing Coordinator position (25-hours/week). The full
amount to be paid from the Community Housing Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 15




CPC Proposal F: Bates/Blackman improvement/Accessible Path $39,545

Summary:  The Groton Conservation Trust is requesting $39,545 to defray costs of portions of its
rehabilitation of the Bates and Blackman parcels located on Old Ayer and Indian Hill Roads. The
requested funds would be used to: a) replace the vehicle bridge across James Brook linking the parking
lot to the balance of the properties; b) install a wheelchair accessible trail of about ¥ mile fength from
the parking area through a picnic area and to the edge of Groton Hilf Music Center's fields; and c)
purchase two wheelchair accessible picnic tables for the project. These are three important
components of a larger project to expand and improve the parking fot including accessible parking,
restore the three meadows fo native vegetation, remove invasive species, improve trail safety, and
reconfigure the Bates picnic area. The larger project has relied on extensive volunteer labor and is
seeking additional funds from other sources. The full amount to be paid from the Open Space Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

CPC Proposal G: Groton Country Club Recreation Courts Project $146,532

Summary:  Friends of Groton Pickleball, Inc. is requesting $146,532 in CPA funds fo serve as
additional funding to convert the four Groton Country Club tennis courts into 8 dedicated Pickleball
courts and 1 tennis court. The existing courts have deteriorated and will be replaced with a new base,
pavement, pickleball court surface, striping and fencing. The funds requested will be combined with the
$148,868 approved at the 2021 Spring Town Meeting for a total project cost not fo exceed §295,400.
The full amount wilf be paid from the CPA Unallocated Reserve. The full amount to be paid from the
Unalfocated Reserve.

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously
Community Preservation Committee: Recommended Unanimously

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 186




ARTICLE 12: ZONING AMENDMENT — MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Zoning Bylaw by deleting Section 218-10.4(C)(3) in its
entirety and replacing it with a new Section 218-10.4(C)}{3) as follows:

3) No marijuana establishment entrance shall be located closer than 500 feet from the entrance of
a preexisting public or private preschool, school providing education in kindergarten or any grades 1
through 12, junior college, college, licensed day-care center, church, library, park, playground, or other
marijuana establishment. Distance shall be measured in a straight line from the geometric center of the
marijuana establishment’s entrance door to the geometric center of the entrance door or primary public
entrance location of the nearest facility listed in the previous sentence, unless there is an impassable
barrier within those 500 feet that renders any part of the 500-foot straight-line distance inaccessible by
a pedesfrian or automobile, in which case the 500-foot distance shall be measured along the center of
the shortest publicly-accessible pedestrian travel path from the geometric center of the marijuana
establishment’s entrance door to the geometric center of the entrance door or primary public entrance
location of the nearest facility listed in the previous sentence.

or to take any other action relative thereto.

SELECT BOARD

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position
Planning Board: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  The intent of this Zoning Amendment is to bring the Town’s Marjjuana Zoning Bylaw in
compliance with State Law and State Regulations relative to distance between various establishmernts.

ARTICLE 13: ZONING AMENDMENT — PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Groton Zoning By-Laws as follows:

1. Delete Section 218-5.5 Special Use Considerations in the R-B, VCG, NB, GB, and | Districts in
its entirety and replace it with the following:

218-5.5 Performance Standards for Business and Industrial Special Permit Uses in the R-B, VCB, NB,
GB, and | Districts.

A. Objectives. The objectives of these special use regulations are to provide entrepreneurial and
employment opportunities for area residents; to focus development at locations occasioning
relatively small environmental or community cost; to protect the Town's rural character and
natural environment; to promote harmonious future development; and to provide convenient
services for Groton residents.

B. Special permits for business or industrial uses, if consistent with this chapter in all other
respects, shall be granted only if the special permit granting authority determines that the
proposal's benefits to the Town or vicinity will outweigh any adverse effects, after consideration

of the following:

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 17




Location.

[1]

[2]

[3]

The proposal will be located near uses which are similar to the proposed use or, if not,
the nearby uses will be ones likely to benefit from rather than be damaged by having the
proposed activity nearby.

Public water supply will be available or will be made available without increased cost to
the Town, the Water Department or its current rate payers, and serving this use at this
location will pose no problems which are unusual.

The proposal will not cause environmental stress from erosion, siltation, groundwater or
surface water contamination or disturbance to wildiife habitat on the site if the wildlife is
officially listed by the Massachusetts Division of Fisheries and Wildiife pursuant to 321
CMR 8.00 as endangered, threatened or of special concern.

Activity type and mix.

[1]
(2]

The proposed activity will contribute to the diversity of services available to the Town.
Any retail services will be designed to serve the Town's population rather than a larger
region.

[3] The proposal will add little to traffic congestion, considering the location, the number of
trips likely to be attracted and any special access provisions committed (e.g., bike
storage facilities or employee ridesharing).

[4] The proposal will pose no environmental hazard because of use or storage of explosive,
flammable, toxic or radioactive materials.

[5] The proposal will not result in air pollution or excessive noise.

Site design.

[11 Scenic views from public ways and other developed properties will be considerately
treated in the design of the site.

[2] Topographic change will not result in cuts or fills exceeding seven feet.

[3] Removal of existing trees or other important natural features will be avoided.

[4] Pedestrian movement within the site and to other places will be well provided for.

[5] Vehicular movement within the site will be safe and convenient and arranged so as to
not disturb abutting properties.

[6] Visibility of parking and service areas from public streets will be minimized through

[7]
18]

facility location and the use of topography and vegetation.

Potential disturbances such as noise, glare and odors will be effectively confined to the
premises through buffering or other means.

Water quality will be protected through appropriate location and design of disposal
facilities in relation to water bodies and site geology.

Facility design.

[1]
[2]

[3]

Scenic views from public ways and other developed properties will be considerately
treated in the design of the buildings.

Primary exterior materials will match the appearance of materials commonly found on
existing buildings within the Town.

Domestic scale will be maintained in the building's design through massing devices such
as breaks in walls and roof planes and through the design of architectural features.

Overall planning. The proposed plan will be consistent with:

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 18




[1] The intentions stated in § 218-4.2, Intention of districts, and in § 218-1.2, Purposes.”

2. Amend Section 218-5.2 Schedule of Use Regulations by deleting Lines 43 and 82 in their
entirety and replacing them with the following:

Please see Section 218-5.5 for performance standards for the following special permit uses in
the R-B, VCB, NB, GB, and | Districts.

or to take any other action relative thereto.

PLANNING BOARD

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position
Planning Board:

Summary:  The intent of this zoning amendment is to clarify the provisions of Section 218-5.5 of the
Zoning Bylaw. Section 218-5.5 contains the provisions for two different types of zoning processes
which are not necessarily related. One zoning process outlined in Section 218-5.5 is a zoning map
change to rezone land into a Business or Industrial District, which requires the presentation of a
concept plan and approval at a Town Meeting. The concept plan requirement is inconsistent with state
faw. The second zoning process outlined in Section 218-5.5 is a special permit for business or
manufacturing use, which requires the submittal of a special permit application and approval by the
Planning Board after a public hearing. The proposed zoning amendment would eliminate the concept
plan requirement for a zoning map change. The special permit requirements for business or
manufacturing use would remain.

ARTICLE 14: EXTEND CENTER SEWER DISTRICT

To see if the Town will vote to extend the “Groton Center Sewer District” as established by the
vote of the Special Town Meeting of February 6, 1989, under Article 7, and as shown most recently on
the plan approved under article 14 of the Annual Town Meeting of April 25, 2005, to include the
property shown on Assessors’ Map 116, Lot 101 {Undeveloped Lot Taylor Street) but only for the
exclusive use of said lot, and its successors or assigns, and provided that all costs of designing, laying,
and construction of the extension and any associated connection and the cost of additional capacity
and the property owner's proportionate share of the general benefit facilities, and all other costs
associated therewith, are paid by the owner of the property benefited thereby, whether by the
assessment of betterments or otherwise, or to take any other action relative thereto.

BOARD OF SEWER COMMISSIONERS

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position
Board of Sewer Commissioners: Recommended Unanimously

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 19




Summary:  This article requests authorization from the Town Meeting to expand the Center Sewer
District to include Lot 116-101, Groton. This article, if approved, will provide Sewer Capacity for the
exclusive use of said Lot.

ARTICLE 15: ELECTRONIC VOTING STUDY COMMITTEE

To see if the Town will vote to create an Electronic Voting Study Committee appointed by the
Town Moderator consisting of the Town Clerk and four (4) voters of the Town for the purpose of
exploring the option of implementing electronic voting at Town Meeting; said Committee to receive
support from Town Officials as required, and, further, said Committee to provide a report to the 2022
Fall Town Meeting addressing all issues associated with such a change including but not limited to
cost, bylaws and administrative procedures, or to take any other action relative thereto.

TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position

Summary: The use of electronic voting at Town Meeting has been reviewed as offering a fevel of
anonymity that would yield a better reflection of voter response to Articles proposed at Town Meeting.

A considerable number of fowns in Massachusetts and across the country now use electronic voting.
The 2015 Spring Town Meeting received a report from the Electronic Voting Study Committee
suggesting that electronic voting at Town Meeting may be worthy of adopting, but that costs were
prohibitive and that questions around implementation remained unanswered. It recommended that the
question be revisited in the future. In the years since, many other towns in Massachusetls have
accumulated significant experience with electronic voting, experience that may address many of
the 2015 Committee's unanswered questions. The costs may have declined, and there may be grant
monies available to pay for required equipment. Bylaws may need to be amended to adopt electronic
voting. This article asks Town Meeting to direct the Moderator to appoint a commitiee to update the
work done in 2015 and to provide back to the 2022 Fall Town Meeting a comprehensive report on the
implementation of electronic voting at Town Meeting including thoroughly researched information on
costs, funding, bylaw amendments and implementation defails. An accompanying Warrant Article will
allow voters to defermine whether or not to adopt electronic voting and accompanying bylaw changes.

ARTICLE 16: CITIZENS’ PETITION — AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING DEFINITION

To see if the Town will vote to Amend Section 218-3, Definitions of the Groton Zoning By-Law
by deleting the definition of Age-Restricted Housing and replacing it with the following:

AGE-RESTRICTED HOUSING — Housing for persons 55 years of age or older in which at least 20%
of the dwelling units meet the requirements for Local Action Units (LAU) and which will result in the
development of housing for households at or below 80% of the area median income eligible for
inclusion in the subsidized housing inventory (SHI), as defined by the Massachusetts Department of
Housing and Community Development (DHCD) and which shall be in conformance with federal and
state laws and regulations, including the Fair Housing Act and the Housing for Older Persons Act. All
dwelling units in an Age-Restricted Housing development shall be subject to an age restriction which
shall limit no less than 80% of all the dwelling units in the development to occupancy of at least one

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 20




individual of age 55 or older to be described in a deed, deed rider, restrictive covenant, or other
document that complies with all applicable federal and state laws and which shall be recorded at the
Registry of Deeds or the Land Court. The age restriction shall run with the land in perpetuity and shall
be enforceable by the Town of Groton or any or all of the owners of the development.

or to take any other action relative thereto.

CITIZENS’ PETITION
NAME ADDRESS NAME ADDRESS
Richard W. Lewis 330 Old Dunstable Road Robert Hargraves 21 Temple Drive
Samuel Palmer 319 Hoyts Wharf Road Daniel Keefe 90 Hoyts Wharf Road
Michael Dermody 268 Lowell Road Virginia Vollmer 490 Old Dunstable Road
Robert Kiley 601 Lowell Road Brian l.agasse 111 West Main Street
Carl Flowers 1 Dan Parker Road Rick Santiano 461 Longiey Road

Select Board:
Finance Committee: No Position

Summary: The following summary was prepared by the petitioners and represents their view
on the Article: This change in the definition of "Age-Restricted Housing” will eliminate and correct
outdated requirements that are no longer allowed by a written policy of the Massachusetts Department
of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) in their approval for affordability provisions and
inclusion of restricted affordable units on the Commonwealth of Massachusetts subsidized housing
inventory (SHI), changes the percentage from 50% to 20% affordable, and sefs the age limit for
persons 55 years or older to be in no less than 80% of all the units of the development. All Age-
Restricted Housing projects shall still comply with existing by-laws and regufations including the Zoning
Bylaw of the Town of Groton, Massachusetts, Section 218-9.3(B) Age-Restricted Housing, which
requires a Special Permit from the Planning Board.

ARTICLES 17 THROUGH 24 WILL BE PART OF THE CONSENT AGENDA. PLEASE SEE
EXPLANATION PROVIDED ON PAGE 2 OF THIS WARRANT.

ARTICLE 17: APPROPRIATE MONEY TO OFFSET SNOW AND ICE DEFICIT

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, and/or
borrow a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town Manager, to reduce the deficit in the
Fiscal Year 2022 Snow and lce Budget, as approved under Article 5 of the 2021 Spring Town Meeting,
or to take any other action relative thereto.

TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This article will allow the Town to fund any deficit in the Snow and Ice Account in FY 22.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 21




ARTICLE 18: TRANSFER WITHIN WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum or sums of money from the Water Enterprise Fund
Surplus to the Fiscal Year 2022 Water Department Operating Budget, or to take any other action
relative thereto.

BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This article will request a transfer of funds from Water Surplus to help fund the Fiscal
Year 2022 Water Department's Operational Expenses. As of the printing of the Warramt, it is
anticipated that $95,000 will be transferred for this purpose.

ARTICLE 19: TRANSFER WITHIN CENTER SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum or sums of money from the Center Sewer
Enterprise Fund Surplus to the Fiscal Year 2022 Center Sewer Enterprise Department Budget, or to
take any other action relative thereto.

BOARD OF SEWER COMMISSIONERS

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This article allows the Sewer Department to transfer money from its surplus account to
cover any deficit in the Fiscal Year 2022 Center Sewer Budget. As of the printing of the Warrant, it is
anticipated that $145,000 will be transferred for this purpose.

ARTICLE 20: TRANSFER WITHIN FOUR CORNERS SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum or sums of money from the Four Corners Sewer
Enterprise Fund Surplus to the Fiscal Year 2022 Four Corners Sewer Enterprise Department budget, or
to take any other action relative thereto.

BOARD OF SEWER COMMISSIONERS

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This article allows the Sewer Department to transfer money from its surplus account to
cover any deficit in the Fiscal Year 2022 Four Corners Sewer Budget. As of the printing of the Warrant,
it is anticipated that $10,000 will be transferred for this purpose.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 22




ARTICLE 21: TRANSFER WITHIN CABLE ENTERPRISE FUND

To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum or sums of money from the Cable Enterprise Fund
Surplus to the Fiscal Year 2022 Cable Enterprise Department budget, or to take any other action
relative thereto.

CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary: This article allows the Cable Advisory Committee to transfer money from its surplus
account to cover any deficit in the Fiscal Year 2022 budget. As of the Printing of the Warrant, it is
anticipated that $10,000 will be transferred for this purpose.

ARTICLE 22: PRIOR YEAR BILLS

To see if the Town will vote to transfer from available funds a sum or sums of money for the
payment of unpaid bills from prior fiscal years, or to take any other action relative thereto.

SELECT BOARD

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommendation Deferred Until Town Meeting

Summary:  Town Meeting approval is required to pay bills from a prior fiscal year. A list of unpaid
bills will be provided at Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 23: ESTABLISHMENT OF REVOLVING FUND

To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 71-1 of the Town of Groton Bylaws (entitled
“Funds Established”, by inserting the following amendment establishing a new revolving fund, to follow
after the “Access for Persons with Disabilities” revolving fund:

Program Representative or Board Departmental

or Purpose Authorized to Spend Receipts

Council on Aging Program Fund Council on Aging Director User fees received from
users of Council on Aging
Programs

and, further, to amend Section 71-2 (entitled "Limitation on or increase in expenditures) by adding the
following text to the end of the existing text: “The second paragraph of Massachusetts General Law
Chapter 40, §3 is accepted to allow any balance in the COA Program Revolving Account at the close of

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 23




each fiscal year to remain available for expenditure, without appropriation for such purposes in future
years.”

or to take any other action relative thereto.

COUNCIL ON AGING DIRECTOR

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This Article creates a new revolving fund for the Council on Aging. It will allow for the
collection of fees for participants of the various programs offered by the COA and then use those
collected fees to pay the various Instructors of the programs.

ARTICLE 24: ESTABLISHING LIMITS FOR THE VARIOUS REVOLVING FUNDS

To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to the provisions of G.L. c. 44 sec 53E)z and the
Revolving Fund Bylaw, to amend the Revolving Fund Bylaw to add or delete any revolving account
and/or to set the FY 2023 spending limits for the various revolving funds as follows:

Program or Purpose FY 2023 Spending Limit
Stormwater Management $20,000
Conservation Commission $50,000
Building Rental Fund $50,000
Affordable Housing Marketing $20,000
Home Recycling Equipment $10,000
Access for Persons with Disabilities $10,000
Coungil on Aging Program Fund $50,000
Boat Excise Tax Fund $ 5,000
Transfer Station Glass $10,000
Senior Center Fitness Equipment $10,000

or take any other action relative thereto.

TOWN MANAGER

Select Board:
Finance Committee: Recommended Unanimously

Summary:  This Article sets the limit of annual spending for the various revolving funds authorized
by previous Town Meeting vote and currently set forth in the Town’s Bylaw for said purpose.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 24




Hereof fail not and make return of your doings to the Town Clerk on or before time of said meeting.

Given under our hands this 11" Day of April in the year of our Lord Two Thousand Twenty-Two.

Rebecca H. Pine
Rebecca H. Pine, Chair

Alison S. Manugian
Alison S. Manugian, Yice Chair

Peter S. Cunningham
Peter S. Cunningham, Clerk

Joshua A. Degen

Joshua A. Degen, Member

John F, Reilly

John F. Reilly, Member

OFFICERS RETURN
Groton, Middlesex

Pursuant to the within Warrant, | have this day notified the Inhabitants to assemble at the time, place,
and for the purpose mentioned as within directed. Personally posted by Constable.

Constable Date Duly Posted

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 25




BUDGET MESSAGE FROM THE
TOWN MANAGER
AND
FINANCE COMMITTEE

TOWN OF GROTON
FISCAL YEAR 2023

Pursuant to Article 6 “Finance and Fiscal Procedure”, Section 6.4 “The Budget”, of the Charter of the
Town of Groton, Massachusetts, the Finance Committee, Select Board and Town Manager are pleased
to submit for your consideration the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budget for the Town of
Groton. The Fiscal Year 2022 Budget was significantly impacted by the COVID-18 Pandemic as the
Town saw a decrease in anticipated revenues and the Town approved a budget that level funded the
municipal budget (reduced services in the Groton Police Department, Groton Public Library and Groton
Highway Department were restored in the Fall, 2021) and met the needs of the Groton Dunstable
Regional School District. The Finance Committee, Select Board and Town Manager anticipate a
rebound in these revenues for Fiscal Year 2023 and have constructed a budget taking these increases
into consideration.

In accordance with the Groton Charter and the Town's Financial Policies, in October 2021, the Finance
Committee and Select Board issued the following guidance to the Town Manager prior to the
development of the initial Proposed Operating Budget:

1. The Town Manager shall prepare a balanced budget for Fiscal Year 2023 with no proposed
Override of Proposition 2%2.

2. The Town Manager shall work with representatives of the Groton Dunstable Regional Schoot
District and Nashoba Valley Technical School District to balance the budget.

As stated, it is anticipated that the Town will realize an increase in its revenues for Fiscal Year 2023.
To that end, the Town has budgeted increases in several of its revenue accounts. Piease consider the
following:

1. Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes — The five-year average is $1,774,069. Based on this collection
rate, the Town has budgeted an increase of $45,526 over the Fiscal Year 2022 Estimate to
$1,783,620.

2. Meals Tax/Room Occupancy Tax - The Town has experienced a significant rebound in both

these categories. Based on this, the Town has increased this estimate by $100,000 in Fiscal
year 2023 from $250,000 to $350,000.

3. Other Charges for Services — The Town has negotiated an increase with the Town of
Dunstable over the next five years for Dispatcher Services. Fiscal Year 2023 calls for an
increase of $8,000 for a total of $90,000.

4. Payments in Lieu of Taxes — This line item has been increased by $35,000, from $265,000 to
$300,000 based on negotiations with the various non-profit entities in the Town of Groton.

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 26




5. Other Departmental Revenue — This line item has been increased by $205,000 to $980,000.
This is for the reimbursement for employee benefits from the Enterprise Funds. In FY 2023, the
Town has recalculated the estimate in anticipated reimbursement based on the five (5) year
histary.

B. Investment Income — This has been increased by $10,000 from $40,000 to $50,000 in
anticipation of interest based on the amount held from the bonding of the Florence Roche
Elementary School Project.

Overall, the Town is anticipating an increase in Estimated Receipts of $403,526, or an increase of
10.19% (excluding Country Club Revenues). This increase will allow the Town to maintain, or in some
instances, increase the level of services provided to the residents of Groton, without increasing the
Proposition 2% Levy more than the two and one-half (2%2%) percent allowed by law.

The Finance Committee and Town Manager have developed the following estimated revenues for
Fiscal Year 2023:

Budgeted Proposed Dollar  Percent
Revenue Source FY 2022 FY 2023 Change Change
Property Tax** $ 34157624 § 35269414 $ 1,111,790 3.25%
State Aid $ 1014099 § 1023974 $ 9,875 0.97%
Local Receipts - Excluding Country Club $ 3958004 $ 4361620 $ 403,526 10.19%
Country Club Revenue $ 800,000 $ 600,000 $ - 0.00%
Free Cash $ 478399 § 429,994 $ (48405 -10.12%
Other Available Funds $ 390,000 § 309,000 $ (81,000) -20.77%
TOTAL $ 40598216 § 41,994,002 $ 1,395,786 3.44%

*Includes 2% percent increase allowed by law and $15 million in new growth,

An important difference between Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal Year 2023 was the use of Free Cash and
ARPA (Federal American Rescue Plan Act) Funding to balance the budget. In Fiscal Year 2022, the
Town used Free Cash to fund one-time cash payments to its employees in lieu of receiving a Cost-of-
Living Adjustment and ARPA Funds to cover the cost of a position within the Department of Public
Works. This inflated the use of Free Cash and Other Available Funds last year. To understand new
revenues in Fiscal Year 2023, if those two revenue sources are removed from both years, the Town
realizes an increase in new revenues of $1,525 191, or 3.90%. This allowed the Finance Committee,
Select Board and Town Manager to consider increases in the Municipal Budget to fund areas that will
improve the delivery of services.

Prior to making any new increases to the Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budget, a review of mandatory
expenditures is warranted, as well as areas in the budget that are routine in nature. With regard to
mandatory expenditures, two categories fit this definition, Pension and Health Insurance. In Fiscal Year
2023, the Town has been notified by the Middlesex Country Retirement Board that the pension budget
will increase by $153,655 or 6.44%. Health Insurance will increase by $65,032 or 3.5%.

The Town has seven (7) Collective Bargaining Units. The Town has entered into new three (3) year
Agreements with all Units. Copies of the Individual Agreements with the various Unions c¢an be found

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 27




on the Town Manager's Page on the Town's Website — www.grotonma.gov. Essentially, all Unions
entered into three-year Agreements that call for a 2%% COLA and a one-time 1.5% Cash Bonus in
year one and COLA Adjustments of 2% in years two and three. The total increase in the Fiscal Year
2023 Operating Budget for all of these agreements is $241,879, with one-time cash payments from
Free Cash totaling $123,596.

The Town will realize a significant increase in Excluded Debt for Fiscal Year 2023 as the Town starts
paying debt service on the Florence Roche Elementary School Project to cover both debt that was
permanently financed ($8 million) last year and in anticipation of permanently borrowing an additional
$20 million this year. For Fiscal Year 2023, Municipal Excluded Debt will increase from $1,656,908 to
$3 320,202, an increase of $1,663,294, or 100.03%. Excluded Debt from the Groton Dunstable
Regional School District will decrease by $62,713, or 12.9% from $485,426 to $422,713. Overall,
Excluded Debt will increase in Fiscal Year 2023 by $1,600,581, or 74.7% from $2,142,334 to
$3,742,915. The Town is continuing with its practice to stabilize debt service within the Levy Limit at
approximately $250,000 annually. The Fiscal Year 2023 Budget will continue to follow the plan by
using the Excess and Deficiency (“Free Cash”) Account to pay down the Principal and Interest on the
Police and Fire Radio Project with the intent of paying that off in FY 2025. Last year, $91,974 was used
for this purpose and committed $247,161 from taxation to cover non-excluded Debt Service. In FY
2023, this practice will continue to use Free Cash for the Police and Fire Radio Project ($90,249).
Debt within the Levy Limit will be $240,807 for Fiscal Year 2023.

After a reduction of revenues in Fiscal Year 2020 due to the Pandemic, the Country Club rebounded
significantly in Fiscal Year 2021. In Fiscal Year 2019, for the first time in over 20 years, the Club
returned a profit of $48,291. It was expected that this trend would continue in Fiscal Year 2020,
however, due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Club was closed, essentially eliminating the two biggest
revenue months of Fiscal Year 2020 (May and June). Due to this, instead of returning a profit, the Club
lost $147,770 (total expenses of $471,481; total revenues of $323,711). Thanks to the excellent
planning and adaptation of Pandemic Protocols, our General Manager Shawn Campbell was able to
turn the Club around in one year. In Fiscal Year 2021, the Club made a profit of $149,741 (total
expenses of $514,967; total revenues of $664,708). The Club was able to balance the budget with no
taxpayer subsidy over a two-year period. As a matter of fact, over three years, the Club has actually
returned a profit to the Town of $50,262.

Two years ago, the Finance Committee established the Major Initiative Criteria for budget development.
A Major Initiative is defined as any proposed increase in the Operating Budget of $50,000 in any fiscal
year and/or an increase of $100,000 over three years. There is one major initiative contained in the
Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budget. Specifically, the budget contains funding to add an additional
Dispatcher to the Groton Communications Department, bringing the number to seven full-time
Dispatchers. The current level of staffing is six full time, one permanent part time and two relief
dispatchers. This level allows for two dispatchers to cover eleven (11) of the twenty-one (21) shifts a
week and also allows for the supervisor to have one administrative shift. The increased demands
placed on the dispatch staff and supervisor make it imperative that operational minimums should be
fourteen (14) two (2) dispatcher shifts and two (2) Supervisor administrative shifts. This Department
provides service for Groton and Dunstable Police, Fire, EMS, Animal Control, public utilities, and town
departments after hours and lobby traffic to the Police Station. During the last four years, the
Department averaged over 40,000 logged calls and handled many administrative actions that are not
logged. The Regional Agreement with Dunstable Police and Fire qualifies Groton as a Regional Public
Safety Answering Point (PSAP).  For the past several years the agreement has had the Town of
Dunstable paying $66,000 annually for services and the State 911 Grant provides approximately

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 28



$270,000 in grant for wages, training, and development. The public safety departments in Dunstable
consistently request more service(s). The Town has entered into a five-year agreement increasing the
Dunstable assessment to $110,818.09 in the fifth year.

The additional staffing requested will allow for fourteen (14) of the twenty-one (21) weekly shifts to be
staffed with two dispatchers and the Communications Supervisor would have two much needed
administrative days. The Supervisor needs the two administrative days to ensure compliance with the
operational and State mandated requirements to maintain Dispatch Center Certification and State
Grant Funding. The current demands placed on the Dispaich Center and personnel are ever
increasing and the current staffing provides no relief. Providing the proper staffing levels affords
Dispatchers the opportunity to attend to physical needs and partake of their earned breaks, but also a
mental break away from their work station. It also ensures that the Dispatchers are not overworked
with order-in shifts and will reduce the possibility of emergency calls being mis-handled. The impact on
the Fiscal Year 2023 Proposed Operating Budget for this new position is $72,000 (including salary and
benefits).

The Fiscal Year 2023 Budget also contains funding for a fifteen (15) hour per week Departmental
Assistant for the Council on Aging. The Council on Aging is the only Department that serves the public
that does not have this kind of support. The goal of the Council is to be a welcoming, friendly
environment with excellent customer service dedicated to Groton’s residents. This position will allow for
that type of service. The Department has witnessed a 58.9% increase of duplicated users and a 45.9%
increase of unduplicated users over the last year. The Council on Aging will continue to offer programs
in-person, hybrid, and virtually. This will require additional resources and expanded staff oversight.
This position will allow the Director, Outreach Coordinator, and Community Engagement Specialist to
execute the highest level of their job responsibilities in order to provide the optimal level of customer
service, expanded program opportunities, and enhanced outreach to Groton’s residents. The impact
on the Fiscal Year 2023 Proposed Operating Budget for this new position is $16,640.

The collaboration between the Town of Groton and the Groton Dunstable Regional School District
continues to be strong. The relationship between the Finance Committee, Select Board, Town
Manager and the Groton Dunstable Regional School District is one of strong collaboration and respect.
The Regional School Committee took steps this year to assist the Town of Groton by reducing their
Operational Assessment to allow the Town to fund the new Dispatcher Position to the benefit of both
the Towns of Groton and Dunstable. They have voted to use their Excess and Deficiency Fund to
offset increases in their operational assessment in Fiscal Year 2023. The proposed Operating
Assessment from the Groton Dunstable Regional Schoo! District for Fiscal Year 2023 is $24,319,318,
an increase of $837,968, or 3.57%.

With regard to the Nashoba Valley Regional Technical High School, the Town has been informed that
the number of Groton students attending the School has decreased from 46 to 45. The proposed
Assessment for Nashoba Tech is $810,037, an increase of $2,563, or 0.32%.

Section 6-5 of the Groton Charter requires the Finance Committee to provide a report that details the
differences between the Town Manager's Proposed Budget and their final Proposed Budget. The
primary adjustments to the original budget submitted by the Town Manager were for collective
bargaining. The following Chart shows the differences between the budget received by the Finance
Committee from the Town Manager on December 31, 2021 and the budget that will be proposed to the
2022 Spring Town Meeting:

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 29




Line
ltem

1030
1031
1032
1050
1051
1060
1061
1070
1071
1080
1100
1101
1130
1131
1200
1210
1240
1241
1300
1301
1310
1311
1312
1370
1500
1501
15640
1550
1560
1600
1601
1610
1660
1661
1700
2000
3001
3010
1400
1410
1414

Department/Description

Town Manager - Salaries
Town Manager - Wages

Town Manager - Expenses
Town Accountant - Salaries
Town Accountant - Wages
Board of Assessors - Salaries
Board of Assessors - Wages
Town Treasurer - Salaries
Town Treasurer - Wages
Human Resources - Salary
Information Technology - Salary
Information Technology - Wages
Town Clerk - Salaries

Town Clerk - Wages
Conservation Commission - Salary
Planning Board - Salary
Building Inspector - Salary
Building Inspector - Wages
Police Department - Salaries
Police Department - Wages
Fire Department - Salaries

Fire Department - Wages

Fire Department - Expenses
Communications - Wages
Highway Department - Salaries
Highway Department - Wages
Municipal Building - Wages
Solid Waste Disposal - Wages
Parks Department - VWages
Council on Aging - Salaries
Coungcil on Aging - Wages
Senior Center Van - Wages
Library - Salary

Library - Wages

Groton Country Club - Salary

Long Term Debt - Principal Excluded

OPEB Unfunded Liability
Health Insurance
Nashoba Tech Assessment

Groton Dunstable Regional School Assessment

Groton Dunstable Regional School Capital

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 30

PP LLRLALE DDA AR R RS RREBRR R

Original
Proposed

227,960
114,323
12,100
97,333
50,860
82,000
62,995
134,173
76,157
83,638
116,329
58,882
951,748
71,084
70,165
84,843
94,300
56,501
271,906
1,965,660
253,900
1,080,469
162,700
475,122
114,984
715,295
153,132
145,394
16,803
81,600
116,760
52,521
410,455
330,083
166,977
1,300,000
187,553
2,183,767
827,661
24,238,580
553,411

& €7 7 F H P AR H R EER R RN RN H NPT P e

Committee
Approved

240,331
119,223
24,700
101,125
52,906
85,280
65,551
139,455
79,042
87,984
121,981
61,269
95,417
73,588
73,971
89,236
99,073
58,769
278,889
2,092,705
260,754
1,051,432
195,600
500,359
120,523
743,115
159,057
150,995
17,481
85,855
104,536
54,331
428,544
342,055
170,414
2,112,000
181,000
1,025,576
810,037
24,319,318
577,026




The following is a breakdown of the Finance Committee’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budget
by function:

Doliar Percentage

Category FY 2022 FY 2023 Difference Change
General Government $ 2,169,373 § 2,281,925 S 112,552 5.19%
Land Use $ 431839 $ 454,670 S 22,831 5.29%
Protection of Persons and Property $ 4353853 $ 4,671,029 5 317,176 7.28%
Department of Public Works $ 2,293376 § 2,345,816 S £2,440 2.29%
Library and Citizen Services $ 1,715,760 $§ 1,892,083 S 176,323 10.28%
Sub-Total - Wages and Expenses S 10,964,202 & 11,645,523 S 681,321 6.21%
Debt Service $ 1,996,043 § 3,651,258 S 1,655,215 82.92%
Employee Benefits $ 4571593 § 4,797,706 S 226,113 4,95%
Sub-Total - All Municipal S 17,531,838 § 20,094,487 $ 2,562,649 14.62%
Nashoba Tech $ 807474 § 810,037 S 2,563 0.32%
Groton-Dunstahle Operating 3 23481350 § 24,319,318 S 837,968 3.57%
Groton-Dunstable Excluded Debt $ 485426 § 422,713 ) {62,713) -12.92%
Groton-Dunstable Debt $ 56,358 % 60,191 S 3,833 6.80%
Groton Dunstable Capital $ 217298 $ 577,026 5 359,728 165.55%
Sub-Total - Education S 25,047,906 S 26,189,285 s 1,141,379 4.56%
Grand Total - Town Budget S 42,579,744 $ 46,283,772 S 3,704,028 8.70%

The total Fiscal Year 2023 Proposed Operating Budget, including Regional School Assessments and
excluded debt, is $46,283,772, or an increase of 8.70%. This proposed balanced budget is at the
anticipated FY 2023 Proposition 2% Levy Limit. When you take into consideration the proposed Capital
Budget, Enterprise Fund Budgets and additional appropriations raised on the recap sheet, the total
proposed balanced budget is $50,060,097. The Fiscal Year 2022 Tax Rate has been certified at
$17.19. Based on the Proposed Balanced Budget, the estimated Tax Rate in Fiscal Year 2023 is
$18.35, or an increase of $1.18. In Fiscal Year 2022, the average Tax Bill in the Town of Groton
(based on a home valued at $535,100) is $9,198. Under this proposed balanced budget, that same
homeowner can expect a tax bill of $9,819, or an increase of $621. The following chart shows a
comparison between FY 2022 and FY 2023:

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 31




Actual Proposed Dollar  Percent

FY 2022 FY 2023 Change Change
Levy Capacity Used” $ 34157624 % 35,260414 $ 1,111,790 3.25%
Tax Rate on Levy Capacity Used $ 16.18 & 16.59 $ 0.41 2.53%
Average Tax Bill $ 8658 % 8,877 $ 219 2.53%
Excluded Debt $ 2,140,460 § 3,741,491 $ 1,601,031 74.80%
Tax Rate on Excluded Debt $ 1.01 § 1.76 $ 0.75 74.26%
Average Tax Bill $ 540 § 942 $ 401 74.26%
Finat Levy Used $ 36,208,084 $ 39,010,805 $ 2,712,821 7A7%
Final Tax Rate $ 1719 % 18.35 $ 1.16 6.75%
Average Tax Bill** 3 8,198 % 9,819 3 621 6.75%

*The FY 23 Levy includes FY 22 unexpended tax capacity of $20,933 and $15 million in New Growth.
**The annual growth in the average tax bill based on the Town Manager's Proposed Budget is 2.5%,
however, the overall bill is increasing by an additional 5.2% due to the first year of a portion of the
Florence Roche Elementary School Project.

The Town Manager and Finance Committee would like to take this opportunity to thank the Select
Board, Town Accountant Patricia DuFresne, Town Treasurer/Collector Hannah Moller, Assistant
Treasurer/Collector Michael Hartnett, Town Clerk Michael Bouchard, Principal Assessor Megan Foster,
Human Resources Director Melisa Doig, Executive Assistant Dawn Dunbar and all of the Departments,
Boards, Committees and Commissions for their outstanding work and cooperation in assisting in the
preparation of the Proposed Operating Budget. In addition, the outstanding support and cooperation by
Superintendent Dr. Laura Chesson, Business Manager Sherry Kersey and the Groton Dunstable
Regional School District Committee was extremely important in developing this budget.

The Finance Committee encourages the public to attend its meetings and contribute through asking
questions, providing comments, and listening to others debate the many important financial issues
before the Town today.

Respectfully submitted, Respectfully submitted,

Mark W. Haddad Bud Rebertson, Chair
Groton Town Manager @dMﬂdﬂWﬂ, Vice Chair
Gary Green
Colby Doody
Scott Whitefield
Jamie McDonald
Michael Sulprizio

Town of Groton Finance Committee

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 32




PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
DEBT EXCLUSIONS

CHERRY SHEET - STATE AID
UNEXPENDED TAX CAPACITY
LOCAL RECEIPTS:

General Revenue:
Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes
Meals Tax and Room Occupancy Tax
Penalties & Interest on Taxes
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Other Charges for Services
Fees
Rentals
Library Revenues
Other Departmental Revenue
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeits
jnvestment Income
Recreation Revenues
Miscellaneous Non-Recurring

Sub-fotal - General Revenue

Other Revenue:
Free Cash
Capital Stablization Fund for GDRSD
Stabilization Fund for Tax Rate Relief
Capital Asset Stabilization Fund
EMS/Conservation Fund Receipts Reserve
Community Preservation Funds
Water Department Surplus
Sewer Department Surplus
Insurance Reimbursements
Bond Surplus Transfer
Coronavirus Recovery Funds

Sub-total - Other Revenue
WATER DEPARTMENT ENTERPRISE
SEWER DEPARTMENT ENTERPRISE
L.OCAL ACCESS CABLE ENTERPRISE
FOUR CORNER SEWER ENTERPRISE
STORMWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

TOWN OF GROTON
FISCAL YEAR 2023
REVENUE ESTIMATES

BUDGETED ESTIMATED

FY 2022 FY 2023 CHANGE
$ 34,157,624 $ 35,269,414 § 1,111,791
$ 2,140,460 $ 3,741,491 § 4,601,031
$ 1,014,089 § 1,023,974 $ 9,875
$ 20,933 § - % {20,933)
$ 1,738,004 § 1,783,620 $ 45526
$ 250,000 $ 350,000 § 100,000
$ 120,000 $ 110,000 $ (10,000)
$ 265,000 § 300,000 § 35,000
$ 82,000 $ 90,000 $ 8,000
$ 340,000 $ 350,000 $ 10,000
$ 28,000 $ 28,000 $ -
$ - % - 3% -
$ 775,000 % 980,000 § 205,000
$ 300,000 $ 300,000 § -
$ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ -
$ 40,000 $ 50,000 $ 10,000
$ 600,000 $ 600,000 $ -
$ - § - % -
$ 4,558,094 $ 4,961,620 $ 403,526
$ 467,679 $ 519,994 $ 152,315
$ 217,298 $ 577,026 $ 359,728
$ - % - % -
$ 475,000 $ 538,000 $ 63,000
$ 300,000 $ - % (300,000)
$ - % - % -
$ - % - % -
$ - % - % -
$ - % - % -
$ - % 15224 15,224
$ 90,000 $ 300,000 $ 219,000
$ 1,549,977 $ 2,059,244 $ 509,267
$ 1,404,564 % 1,647,167 $ 242,603
$ 798,860 $ 837,839 $ 38,979
$ 215,905 $ 223,219 § 7,314
$ 68,769 $ 79,134 § 10,365
$ 200,753 $ 216,995 $ 7,242
$ 45,929,284 $ 50,060,097 s 4,130,813

Page 33




TOWN OF GROTON
FISCAL YEAR 2023
TAX LEVY CALCULATIONS

FY 2023 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES

FINANCE COMMITTEE - Proposed Budget
General Government
Land Use Departiments
Protection of Persons and Property
Regional School Districts
Department of Public VWorks
Library and Citizen Services
Debt Service
Employee Benefits

Sub-Total - Operating Budget

A
B.
.
D.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5,

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.
E.
F.
G

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REQUESTS
CAPITAL BUDGET REQUESTS

ENTERPRISE FUND REQUESTS

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION REQUEST

OTHER AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED
Amounts certified for tax title purposes
Debt and interest charges not included
Final court judgments
Total Overlay deficits of prior years
Total cherry sheet offsets
Revenue deficits
Offset Receipts
Authorized deferral of Teachers' Pay
Snow and lce deficit
Other

TOTAL OTHER AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED
STATE AND COUNTY CHERRY SHEET CHARGES
ALLOWANCE FOR ABATEMENTS AND EXEMPTIONS

TOTAL PROPOSED EXPENDITURES

F¥Y 2023 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

EamMmuowm >

H.

ESTIMATED TAX LEVY
Levy Lirnit
Debt Exclusion

ESTIMATED TAX LEVY

CHERRY SHEET ESTIMATED RECEIPTS
LOCAL RECEIPTS NOT ALLOCATED
OFFSET RECEIPTS

ENTERPFPRISE FUNDS

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUNDS
FREE CASH

OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS
Stabilization Fund

Capital Asset Fund

GDRSD Capltal Asset Fund
EMS/Conservation Fund
Bond Surplus Transfer
Coronavirus Recovery Funds

dopruNS

OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS

TOTAL ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

FY 2023 SURPLUSKDEFICIT)

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 34

HHHHRH Y s

“HhnhBaBDHNLH

HHHBYH

2,281,925
454,670
4,671,029
26,189,285
2,345,816
1,892,083
3,651,258
4,797,706

35,269,414
3,741,491

538,000
577,026

15,224
309,000

HHH @

# B

£

LR

46,283,772

46,283,772
728,000
2,712,690

90,386
95,249
150,000

50,060,097

39,010,905

1,023,974
4,961,620

3,004,354

519,994

1,439,250
50,060,097

[¢]




APPENDIX A TOWN OF GROTON

FISCAL YEAR 2023
ran A ran R
PN FA2  TONNMANAGER  FNCON  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENTOF

LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE TAXBILL  TAXBILL

(GENERAL GOVERNMENT
MODERATOR
1000 Salaries § 65 § g5 § 65 § 65 8.00% $ oM 0.00%
1001 Expenses § - § 8 8§ 80 0.00% $ 0.2 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 65 ¢ 145 § 145 § 145 8.00% $ 003 0.00%

1020 Salaries $ - § - $ - § - 000% $ - 0.00%
1021 Wages $ - § - - - 0.00% $ - 0.00%
1022 Expenses § 2388 § 3300 § 6,800 § 6300  106.06% $ 14 0.01%
1023 Engineesing/Consultant $ - § - - § S 11,8 - 0.00%
1024 Minor Capitai $ 265% § 25683 § 25800 § 25,800 0.46% $ 5.35 0.05%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 7944 § 26,085 § 32600 § 32600 1248% § B.76 0.07%

1030 Salaries $ 235,880 § 2130 § 40331 § 240,331 517% $ 4984 0.51%
1031 Wages § 124977 § 115172 § 119,223 § 119,223 3.52% § U7 0.25%
1032 Expenses § 8322 § 14600 § 1700 § 4700 59.48% $ 542 0.05%
1033 EngineeringfConsultant § - § - § - § - 000%$ . 0.00%
1034 Performance Evaluations $ - § - § - § - 000%$ . 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 369,179 § 356,992 § 384,254 § 184254 7.64% $ 79.69 8.81%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 35




LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION

FY 202 FY 2022
ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET

FY 2023 FY 2023
TOWN MANAGER  FINCOM

CHANGE

FY 2023

TAXBILL

FY 2023
PERCENT AVERAGE  PERCENT OF
TAXBILL

NANCE COMMITTEE
1040 Expenses § 0§ 215§ 15§ 215 0.00% § 0.04 0.00%
1041 Reserve Fund $ 64,500 § 150000 § 160000 § 150000  000%§ M 0.32%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 64,710 § 150,215 ¢ 150,215 § 150215 0.00% %  MA5 0.32%

1050 Selaries $ 97083 § 96,408 § 101125 § 025 48% % 209 0.21%
1051 Wages $ 49937 § 50865 § 52906 § 5006 40% $ 1097 0.41%
1052 Expenses $ 3490 § 37,706 § 40204 $ 40,204 6.62% $ §.34 0.08%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 182,510 § 184979 § 194,235 § 194235  500% § 408 0.41%

1060 Salaries § 85,584 § 81,200 § 85200 § 85.280 5.02% $ 17.69 0.48%
1061 Wages $ 53466 § 61,763 § 65551 § 69,551 6.43% $ 13,89 0.44%
1062 Expenses $ 15541 § 45215 § 4525 § 45215 0.00% $ 9.38 0.40%
1063 Legal Expense $ - § - § - § - 0.00% $ - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 154,591 § 188,178 § 196,046 § 196,046 418% $ 40,66 0.41%

1070 Salaries $ 91,100 § 136138 § 139455 § 139455 095% § 2892 0.29%
1071 Wages § 120,703 § 1297 § 79042 § 79,042 26% % 1639 0.17%
1072 Expenses $ 19415 § 20945 3 216% $ 21695 3.58% $ 450 0.05%
1073 Tax Tille § o7 % 5725 § 7100 § 7400 2402% $ 147 0.01%
1074 Bond Cost § 1050 § 3300 § 2300 § 2300 -30.30% $ 048 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 23515 § 245405 § 49592 § 249,592 1% $ 5176 0.53%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 36




LINE DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION

FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM
ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET

PERCENT
CHANGE

FY 2023
AVERAGE  PERCENT OF
TAXBILL

FY 2023

TAX BILL

1080 Expenses

85,217 § 90,000 § 90,000 $ 96,000

0.00% $

18,66

0.19%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL

BUT § 90,000 § 90000 § 90,000

0.00% $

18.66

0.19%

1090 Salary $ M3 § 82822 § 87984 § 87,984 6.23% § 18.25 0.19%
1091 Expenses $ 8107 § 10,000 § 11400 § 11400 14.00% $ 236 0.02%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 93420 § 92822 § 99,384 § 99,384 7.07% $ 2061 0.21%

1100 Salary $ 7,003 § 115193 § 121981 § 121,981 589% § 25,30 0.26%
1101 Wages $ 61116 § 62,338 § 61269 $ 61269 A% $ 121 0.43%
1102 Expenses $ 20592 § 22800 § 22,800 § 22,800 0.00% $ 41 0.05%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 198,711 § 200331 § 206,050 § 206,050 285% $ 273 0.44%

1120 Expenses

16,000 $ 10800 § 10800 $ 10,800

0.00% $

224

0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL

16,000 § 10,800 § 10,800 § 10,800

0.00% §

2.24

0.02%

1130 Salaries $ 92,073 § 90853 $ 95417 § 95417 5.02% $ 19.79 0.20%
1131 Wages $ 63491 § 65,205 § 73588 § 73588 1286% § 1526 0.16%
1132 Expenses § 9951 § 9867 § 9867 & 4,967 0.00% § 205 0.02%
1135 Minor Capital § - § - 3§ - § 0.00% $ - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 71,515 § 165,925 § 178872 § {78,872 7.80% § 3709 0.38%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 37




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENT OF
LINE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE TAXBLL  TAXBILL

LECTIONS & BOARD

1140 Stipend § 16,356 § 6,33% $ 2079 § 2795 243.99% $ 452 0.05%
1141 Expenses § 1,280 § 7912 § 12437 § 12451 5119% § 2.58 0.03%
1142 Minor Capita § -5 - § - § - 000% . 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ - %S 1428 § 422 $ U2 140.26% § 740 0.07%

1150 Expenses $ 4706 $ 485 § 5000 § 5000 3.09% $ 1.04 0.01%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 4,706 $ 4,850 § 5000 § 5000 3.09%§ 104 0.01%

1160 Insurance & Bonding $ 23885 § 200000 § 300000 § 300,000 3.45% § 62,21 0.63%
1161 Insurance Deductivle Reserve - Liablity ~ $ 12000 $ 12,000 $ 12000 § 12,000 0.00% § 248 0,03%
1162 Insurance Deductivle Reserve - 111F $ - § 25000 § 5000 § 25000 0.00% § 518 0.05%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 265,885 § 327,000 § 37000 § 337,000 3.06% § 69.89 0.74%

1170 Expenses $ 1416 § 150 § 1500 8 1500 0.00% § 0.1 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 1416 § 1500 § 1500 § 1500 0.00% $ 031 0.00%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 38




LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION

FY 202
ACTUAL

FY 2023 FY 2023
FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM
APPROPRIATED ~ BUDGET BUDGET

FY 2023

FY 2023

PERCENT  AVERAGE PERCENT OF

CHANGE

TAXBILL

TAXBILL

1160 Expenses § 53042 § 60,000 § 65,000 § 65,000 8.33% § 13.48 0.14%
1181 Telephone Expenses $ 2034 § 0000 § 30000 $ 30000 0.00% $ 6.2 0.06%
1182 Office Supplies § 12837 § 17000 § 17000 § 17,000 0.00% $ 353 0.04%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 90813 § 107,000 § 12,000 § #2000  467%§ BN 0.24%
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ¢ 1977833 § 2169373 § 2,261,925 § 2261925 §519% § 413 4.82%

LAND USE DEPARTMENTS

1200 Salary § 10278 § 69481 § 7391 § 7381 6.46% § 15.34 0.16%
1201 Wages § - $ - § - § - 000% $ . 0.00%
1202 Expenses § 719 $ 7350 § 7565 $ 7565 293% $ 157 0.02%
1203 Engheering & Legal § - - § - § - 000% $ . 0.00%
1204 Minor Capital $ § - - § 0.00% $ 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 741§ 7683 § 8153 § 81,536 6.42% § 1691 047%

1210 Salaries $ 85519 § 84016 § 89,236 § 80,236 6.21% § 18.51 0.49%
1211 Wages $ - § - § - § 0.00% § . 0.00%
1212 Expenses $ 5540 § 8650 $ 8950 $ 005  15.03% ¢ 206 0.02%
1215 MRP.C. Assessment $ 3755 § 3850 § 4000 $ 4000 390%$ 083 0.01%
1218 Legel Budget $ - § - § - § 0.00% § - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 94814 § 96,516 § 103,486 § 103,186 6.91% § 40 0.22%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 39




FY 2023 FY 2083 FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENTOF
LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL  APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE TAXBILL  TAXBILL

1220 Wages $ 20524 § - $ - § - 0.00% § - 0.00%
1221 Expenses $ 484 1500 § 1500 § 1,500 0.00% § 0.3t 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 2,008 § 1500 § 1,500 § 1,500 0.00% $ (XY 0.00%

1230 Wages $ - § - § - § - 000% $ . 0.00%
1231 Expenses $ - § - $ - § - 0.00% § . 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ -4 - § - § . 0.00% $ . 0.00%

1240 Selaries $ 118,522 % 93380 § 28073 § 99,073 6.10% § 20.55 0.21%
1241 Wages $ 55,768 ¢ 56,503 § 58,769 $ 58,769 401% § 1219 0.12%
1242 Expenses $ 3,700 § 3500 § 3700 § 3,700 5% § an 0.01%
1243 Minor Capita $ - § - - § - Q0% § - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 178,010 § 153,383 § 16,542 § 161,542 5.32% § 3350 0.34%

1250 Fee Salaries $ %620 § 30000 $ 39000 § 39000 30.00% § 8.09 0.08%
1251 Expenses $ 2838 § 4000 § 4000 § 4,000 0.00% $ 083 0.01%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 1458 § 34000 § 43,000 §$ 43000 2647% $ 892 0.09%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 40




LINE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION

FY 2024
ACTUAL

FY 2025 FY 2023
FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM
APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET

FY 2023

FY 2023

PERCENT ~AVERAGE  PERCENT OF

CHANGE  TAXBILL

TAXBILL

1260 Stend $ 2500 § 250 § 250§ 2500 0.00% § 0.52 0.01%
1261 Expenses § - § 10§ 200§ 00 10000%8% 004 0.00%
1262 Minor Capital § - 3 - - § 0.00% § . 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 2,500 § 2600 § 2700 § 3100 3.85% § 0.56 0.01%

1270 Wages § - § - § - § - 000% § - 0.00%
121 Expenses § 830 § 1575 § 1575 § 1575 000%§ 0% $.00%
1272 Nursing Sendces § - § 13767 § 14455 $ 4% 500%§ 0 0.03%
1273 Nashoba Heallh District $ 4841 § 0167 § 3675 § 3815 5.00% $ 6.57 0.07%
1274 Hemert Lipton MH $ 8006 § 8000 § - § 400.00% § . 0.00%
1275 EngfConsultiLandil Menitoring $ 1123 § 10200 § 10200 § 1000 0.00%$ 212 0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 61,904 § 63,709 § 57,905 § 5805 A% 12 0.12%

1280 Fee Salaries $ 36§ 3200 § 3200 § 300 0.00% ¢ 0.66 0.01%
1281 Expenses § - § 100 § 10 § 0 %s 00 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 0 ¢ 3300 § 3,300 § 3300 000%$ 068 0.01%
TOTALLAND USEDEPARTMENTS ~ § 477468 § 431839 § 454670 § 454670  520% § 9428 0.96%

Page 41

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023
Fy 2024 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENT OF
LINE DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL  APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE  TAXBILL  TAXBILL

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

OLICE DEPARTHENT

1300 Salaries § 200207 § 269,791 § 278888 § 278,889 1.37% § 57.84 0.5%%
130 Wages $ 1952786 § 1981381 § 2002704 & 2,092,704 562% § 43399 442%
1302 Expenses $ 177093 § 21220 § 214450 § 214450 1,06% § 4447 0.45%
1303 Lease or Purchase of Cruésers $ 4920 § 5000 § 5000 § 5,000 0.00% $ 1.04 0.01%
1304 PS Building (Expenses) $ - § - § - § - 0.00% $ . 0.00%
1305 Minor Capital $ 19966 § 11,000 § 11,000 § 11,000 0.00% § 2.8 0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 2354972 § ZAT93T2 § 2502043 § 2,602,043 495% § 539.62 5.60%

1310 Salariss $ 235,000 § 238,926 § 200,754 § 260,754 8.13% § 54.08 0.55%
1311 Wages ) G29402 097594 § 1051432 & 1051432 537% § 218,05 2.22%
1312 Expenses $ 174,567 § 161682 § 195,600 § 195,600 20.98% $ 40,56 0.41%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 1,338,959 § 1398504 § 1,507,786 § 1,507,786 781% § 268 318%
E PROTECTION
1320 West Groton Water District $ - § 1% 1% 1 0.00% $ .00 0.00%
1321 Groton Water Department $ - § 1% 1% 1 0.00% § 0.00 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ -4 24 74 2 0.00% $ .00 0.00%

1330 Salary $ 2082 § 2082 § 2082 § 2082 0.00% $ 0.43 0.00%
1331 Expenses $ 125 § 400 $ 400 § 400 0.00% § 0.08 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 207 § 2482 § 2482 % 2482 0.00% $ 0.51 0.01%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 42




LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION

FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM
ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET

FY 2023 FY 2023
PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENT OF
CHANGE  TAXBILL  TAXBILL

1340 Salary $ 2082 § 2082 § 2082 % 2,082 0.00% § 043 0.00%
1341 Expenses $ 125 § 400 § 400 § 400 0.00% $ 0.08 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 2,207 § 2482 § 2482 § 2,482 0.00% $ 0.5¢ 0.01%

1350 Salary $ 4000 § 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 0.00% § 08 0.01%
1351 Expenses $ 12500 § 10,000 § 10,000 $ 10,000 0.00% § 207 0.02%
{352 Minor Capital $ - 3§ -4 - § - 0.00% § - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 16,500 § 14,000 § 14,000 § 14,000 0.00% $ 290 0.03%

1360 Salary $ 14503 § 15,000 § 15000 § 15,000 0.00% $ M 0.03%
1361 Expenses $ 3997 § 3000 § 3000 § 3000 0.00% § 0.62 0.01%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 18,500 § 18,000 § 18,000 § 18,000 0.00% § 313 0.04%

1370 Wages $ 400,005 415137 § 500350 § 500350 2053% § 10377 1.06%
1371 Expenses $ 9364 § 8875 § 23875 § 2875 0.00% $ 495 0.05%
1372 Minor Capita $ -§ - § - $ 0.00% $ . 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 418,459 § £9012 § 54234 § 54234 194% ¢ 10872 1.414%
TOTAL PROTECTION OF $ 4151814 § 4353053 § 4,671,029 § 4671020 7.28% § 968.69 9.87%
PERSONS AND PROPERTY

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 43




FY 2013 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER ~ FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENTOF
LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE TAXBILL  TAXBILL

REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT BUDGETS

1400 Operaling Expenses $ 668,273 § 807474 § 810037 § 810037 03§ 16798 1.14%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 688,273 § 807474 § 810,037 § 810037 032%§ 16799 1%

SCHOOLDISTRICT

1410 Operaling Expenses § 21N B0 § 2431938 § 24319318 351% § 504339 51.36%
1411 Debl Service, Excluded $ - § 48542 § 42713 § Ny 4297 4 8766 0.89%
1412 Debt Senvice, Unexciuded $ - % 56,358 § 60191 § 60,191 6.80% § 1248 0.13%
1813 Qut of District Placement $ - $ - % -§ - 0.00%$ . 0.00%
1414 Capital Assessment $ 265172 3§ 17298 § 5770% § 577026  165.55% §  119.66 1.20%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 2500411 § 420432 8 B8 § 0 2530248 470% § 526320 53.60%
TOTAL SCHOOLS $ 23680684 § 25,047,906 § 26,109,285 § 26,189,265 4.56% § 5431.19 55.31%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

1500 Salaries $ 115659 § 13877 § 120523 § 120528  584%§ 2499 0.25%
1601 Wages $ 646439 § 126364 § 43115 § MM 2U%§ 1540 157%
1602 Expenses $ 125643 § 136,900 § 136900 § 136900  000%§ 2839 0.29%
1603 Highway Maintenance $ 54,076 § 90,000 § 90000 § 90000  000% % 1846 0.19%
1504 Minor Capital $ - § - b 20000 § 000  0.60%$ 415 0.04%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ oM87 § 106714 § 41053 § 110538 407h§ 2304 2.35%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 44




LINE  DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION

FY 2021
ACTUAL

FY 2023
FYa022  TOWNMANAGER
APPROPRIATED ~ BUDGET

FY 2023
FINCOM
BUBGET

FY 2023

FY 2023

PERCENT ~ AVERAGE  PERCENT OF

CHANGE

TAXBILL

TAXBILL

1516 Expenses

$

12204 §

15000 §

15000 §

16,000

0.00% §

M

0.03%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL

$

12204 §

16,000 §

15000 §

18,000

0.00% $

AL

0.03%

1520 Expenses § 137,133 § 165000 § 165,000 § 165000  000% § M2 0.35%
1524 Overtime § 195333 § 140,000 § 140000 § 140000 000% § 2803 0.30%
1522 Hired Equipment $ 82913 § 3H000 § 35,000 § 3I/00  0.00% $ 7.26 0.07%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 415439 § 340,000 $ 340,000 § o000  000% 8 TOS 0.72%

1530 Salary § - § - § - § - 000% $ . 0.00%
1631 Expenses § 613 § 3000 § 3,000 § 3000 0.00% § 0.62 0.01%
1532 Trees § - § 1500 § 1500 § 1500 0.00% $ 0.3 0.00%
1533 Tree Work $ 8300 § 10,000 § 10,000 § 10000  0.00% $ 207 0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 0413 § 14500 § 14500 § 14500 0.00% § 301 0.03%

MUNICIPAL BUILDING AND PROPERT

1540 Wages $ 150647 § 149751 § 159,067 § 199057 62%E 3% 0.34%
1541 Expenses § 76040 § 270950 § 210950 § 7080  000%§ 5619 0.57%
1542 Minor Capita § 19856 § 10000 § 10,000 § 10000 0.00% $ 207 0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § MEEAD § 430,701 § 440,007 § Mo007  216% 8 925 0.93%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 45




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENTOF
LINE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION ACTUAL  APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE TAXBILL  TAXBILL

1550 Wages § 136,484 § 142722 § 150995 § 150,995 5.80% § N3 0.32%
1551 Expenses § 4059 § 45686 § 45686 § 45,686 0.00% $ 947 0.40%
1552 Tipping Fees § 155,101 § 150,000 § 145000 § 145000 -3.33% § 3007 0.31%
1553 North Central SW Coop § 5850 § 5850 § 5850 § 5,850 0.00% § 1.2 0.01%
1554 Minor Capital § 6775 § 5000 § 5000 § 5,000 0.00% $ 104 0.01%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 346,306 § 349,258 § 36253 § 362,531 0.94% $ 73M 0.74%

1560 Wages $ - 3 107§ 17481 § 17481 46.82% § 363 0.04%
1561 Expenses $ 42793 § 56,759 § 55759 § 55759  000%$§ 156 0.12%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 4279 § 76176 § 73,40 § 740 481%§ 1549 0.16%
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF § 224015 § 2203376 § 2345816 § 2345816  229% § 48648 4.95%
PUBLIC WORKS

LIBRARY AND CITIZEN'S SERVICES

1600 Salaries $ 8,447 § §0.747 § 85855 § 85,859 6.33% $ 17.80 0.18%
1601 Wages $ 72037 § 1249 $ 121590 § 12050  67.87% § 25.22 0.26%
1602 Expenses $ 865 § 8454 § 11,064 § 11054 3078% § 2.2 0.02%
1603 Minor Capital $ - - - § - 0.00% $ . 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 169,140 § 161630 § 218499 § Hodo 4% S 454 0.46%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 46




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023

FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERGENTOF
LNE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION ACTUAL  APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET  CHANGE TAXBILL  TAXBIL
NIORCENTERVAN . =
1610 Weges $ 37842 $ 52804 § 54331 $ 5433 285% 6 1427 0.41%
1611 Bxpenses $ 5126 $ 12673 § 13673 $ 1367 TH% S 284 0.03%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 42,968 $ 65497 $ 63,004 § 6004 380%$ 1410 0.14%

1620 Salary § 5000 % 6,200 $ 6,000 § 6,000 S3.23% § 124 0.01%
1621 Expenses $ - § 1400 § 1100 § 1,460 0.00% $ 0.23 0.00%
1622 Velerans' Benefits $ 24000 § 37000 $ 30,000 § 30000 -18.92% ¢ 6.22 0.06%
1623 Minor Capital $ - §$ - $ - § - 0.00% $ . 0.00%

DEPARTMENT TOTAL § 29,009 § 44300 $ 30 8 M0 A6.25% § 7.6% 0.08%

1630 SataryfStipend $ 250 % 50§ 50 8§ 250 0.00% $ 0.05 6.00%
1631 Expenses $ 760 § 760 § 760 § 760 0.00% $ 0.45 6.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 1016 § 1010 § 1010 § 1,010 0.00% $ 0.24 0.00%

1640 Contract Expanses $ 1550 § 1500 $ 1500 § 1,560 0.00% $ 0.3 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 1550 § 1500 $ 1500 § 1,600 0.00% $ 0.31 0.00%

LD BURYING GROUND GOMMIT

1650 Expenses $ -3 800 § 800 § 800 0.00% $ 647 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § - § 800 $ 80¢ § 800 0.00% $ .37 0.00%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 47




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023

FY 2023

FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM  PERCENT AVERAGE PERCENTOF
LNE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION ACTUAL  APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET ~ CHANGE  TAXBILL

TAXBIEL

1660 Salary $ 418,095 § #1259 § 428544 § 426,544 387% § 8887 0.41%
1661 Wages $ 267,060 § 334,369 § 2055 $ 342,055 2.28% § 70.94 0.72%
1662 Expenses $ 128040 § 205304 § H697 § 217,697 6.04% § 4545 0.46%
1663 Minor Capita § - 8 -3 - § - D00% § - 0.00%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL § 808,195 § 952,286 § 988,296 § 988,296 378% § 20495 209%

1670 Expenses $ 8 $ 50 % 500 § 500 0.00% $ 040 0.00%
1671 Fireworks $ - $ - - § - 000% ¢ . 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 86 § 50 § 500 § 500 0.00% $ 040 0.00%

1680 Wages $ 02§ 4200 § 4418 § 4418 5A9% $ 092 0.1%
1681 Expenses and Minor Capital § 5304 § 202§ 2907 § 2907 6% $ 060 0.01%
1682 Property Maint, & Improvements $ 2000 § 9006 § 9,000 § 9000 0.00%$ 187 0.02%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 9,1% $ 15,932 § 16325 § 1935 241%$ 339 0.03%

1690 Wages § - 8 - § - § - 000% $ . 0.00%
1691 Expenses: Weed Harvester $ 171568 § 22000 § 2000 § 22,000 0.00% $ 456 0.05%
1692 Expenses. Great Lakes $ 5 § 2385 § 12365 § 12385 419.29% § 257 0.03%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 1766 § 24365 § 385§ W MH%S 743 0.07%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 48




FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY 2022 TOWN MANAGER FINCOM PERCENT AVERAGE  PERCENT OF
LINE DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL APPROPRIATED BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE  TAXBILL TAX BILL

ROTONCOUNTRY.CLUB:

1700 Salary $ 161,600 $ 161,92¢ § 70414 § 170,414 5.25% § 3534 0.16%
1701 Wages $ 118,025 § 150,000 $ 193000 § 193,000 28.67% % 40.02 0.41%
1702 Expenses $ 163421 % 136,000 § 162,250 § 162,250 19.30% $ 33.65 0.34%
1703 Minor Capilat $ - % -8 - $ 0.00% $ . 0.00%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 443055 $ 47920 % 625664 $ 525,664 17.36% § 109.01 111%
TOTAL LIBRARY AND $ 1521765 § 1,715760 § 1,892,083 § 1,892,083 10.28% § 392.38 4.00%
CITIZEN SERVICES
BEBT SERVICE

2000 Long Term Debt - Principal Excluded $ 1,154,393 § 1,070,000 $ 2,112,000 $ 2,112,000 97.38% $ 437,99 4.48%
2001 Long Term Debt - Principal Non-Excluded  $ - 3 159,154 $ 158,786 § 158,786 0.23% $ 3293 0.34%
2002 Long Term Debt - Inferest - Excluced 5 568,828 § 586,908 3 1,208,202 $ 1,208202  105.86% $ 250,56 2.55%
2003 Long Term Debt - Interest - Non-Excluded  § - 88,007 % 82021 $ 82,021 6.80% $ 17.04 0.17%
2006 Short Term Debt - Principai - Town $ - % 85,174 % 85,174 3 85,174 0.00% $ 17.66 0.18%
2007 Short Term Debt - Interest - Town $ 8958 § 6,800 $ 5075 § 5075 25.37% % 1.05 0.01%

DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 1,762,178 § 1,996,043 $ 3,651,258 § 3,851,258 §2.92% $ 757.21 7.711%
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 1,762,179 $ 1,996,043 § 3,651,258 $ 3,651,258 82.92% $ 767.21 7.71%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

GENERAL BENEFITS
3000 Gounty Retirement $ 2,030,289 § 2,385,255 § 2538910 % 2,538,910 6.44% $ 526,52 5.36%
3001 State Refirement $ 177,094 § 177,094 § 181,000 $ 181,000 2.21% § 37.54 0.38%
3002 Unremployment Compensation $ 10,008 § 10,000 $ 10,000 3 10,000 0.00% $ 207 0.02%
INSURANCE
3010 Health Insurance/Employee Expenses $ 1,723,423 § 1,860,544 $ 1925576 $ 1,925,576 150% $ 399.33 407%
3011 Life Insurance $ 3598 § 3700 § 3820 $ 3520 3.24% $ 0.79 0.01%
3012 Medicare/Social Security $ 132408 $ 135000 $ 138,400 $ 138,400 2.52% § 2870 0.29%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 4136820 § 4571593 § 4,797,706 § 4,797,706 4.95% § 994.96 10.13%
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $ 4136820 § 4571593 § 4,797,706 § 4,797,706  4.95% § 99496 10.13%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 49




LINE  DEPARTMENTIDESCRIPTION

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS

FY 2028 FY 2023
FY 2021 FY2022  TOWNMANAGER  FINCOM
ACTUAL ~ APPROPRIATED  BUDGET BUDGET

FY 2023

FY 2023

PERCENT AVERAGE  PERGENTOF

CHANGE

TAXBILL

TAXBILL

Capital Budge! Request $ 450,100 § 625000 § 726000 § 70000 1648% % 15097 1,54%
Offsel Reciepts § - § - § - § - 0.00% § - 0.00%
Cherry Sheet Offsets $ 18527 § 236 3 2348 § 22346 0.00% § 463 0.05%
Snow and Jee Deficit $ 103816 § 80,000 § 68,040 § 68040 -14.95% § 4H 0.44%
State and Gounly Charges $ 04820 § 97077 § 85,249 § 85,249 A.88% § 10.75 0.20%
Allowance for Abatements/Exemptions  § 150,000 § 273169 § 150,000 § 150,000 -45.08% §$ HA1 0.32%
DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ Mrae § 1007502 § 0 1083635 § 1063635  J09% § 22058 2.25%
GRAND TOTAL - TOWN BUDGET § 40739850 § 43677336 § 47347407 § 47347407  840% § 9819 100.00%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 50




FY 2023 ENTERPRISE FUND BUDGETS

FY 2023 FY 2023
FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 DEPARTMENT TOWHNMANAGER PERCENT
LINE DEPARTMENT/DESCRIPTION ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL APPROPRIATED REQUEST BUDGET CHANGE

WD Salaries $ 134036 $ 145,271 § 151,444 & 154,449 § 161,518 § 161,518 4.58%
WD Wages $ 246,235 § 167,539 § 186,050 § 179675 § 264,003 $ 264,003 46,93%
WD Expenses $ 526,539 § 547,269 $ 498,510 § 668,300 $ 676,063 3 676,063 1.16%
WD Debt Senvice $ 362548 § 402,140 $ 361,977 % 402,140 § 545583 $ 545,583 35.67%
100 DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 1,269,358 § 1,262,218 § 1,198,981 & 1,404,564 § 1,647,167 § 1,641,167 17.21%

EWER DEPARTMENT

Sewer Salaries $ 19212 % 19440 § 20,488 $ 20896 § 23339 § 23,339 1277%
Sewer Wages $ 342 8 36540 § 50727 § 54709 $ 46,114 § 48,114 -10.82%
Sewer Expense $ 642,206 % 633821 § 534,552 % 691,295 § 734494 § 734,494 6.256%
Sewer Debt Senvice b3 5873 % 3833 $ 5504 $ 35160 § 33,802 § 33,892 -3.61%
200 DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 704722 % 72813% § 618,271 § 798,860 $ 837,839 § 837,839 4.88%
WERDEPARTMENT
Four Comers Sewer Salaries $ -5 -5 - § -8 -5 - 0.00%
Four Comers Sewer Wages $ - 8 - % -5 - % 7683 % 7,683 0.00%
Four Comers Sewer Expense $ 22466 $ 20618 § 37803 § 68,760 § 71451 § 71,451 3.90%
Four Corners Sewer Debt Senice  § -8 - § -8 -5 - § - 0.00%
300 DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 22466 § 20818 § 37903 § 68,769 § 79134 § 79,134 15.07%
EDEPARTMENT:
Cable Salaries $ 74004 $ 77,180 § 03,104 § 77941 § BOMHE $ 69,916 -10.30%
Cable Wages $ 51,556 $ 5389¢ § 55,272 § 57575 § 65235 § £5,235 13.30%
Cable Bxpenses $ 64,552 $ 61,356 § 58737 § 75389 § 88,069 § 88,069 16.82%
Cable Mincr Capital $ 5001 § 803 % 2357 8 5000 % - § - -100.00%
400 DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ 195,203 $ 193,337 % 209,470 $ 215905 % 223,219 § 223,21% 3.39%

Stormwater Wages/Benefits $ - % -3 3,330 % 69,753 $ 76,995 $ 16,995 10.38%
Stormwater Equipment $ -8 - 8 -3 20000 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 0.00%
Stormwater Capital Ouliay $ -5 - § - 3 51,000 $ 51,000 § 51,000 0.00%
Stormwater Compliance Gosts $ -8 - % - % 49,000 $ 49,000 $ 49,000 0.00%
Stormwater Disposal/Expenses $ - § - 21537 § 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 0.00%
500 DEPARTMENTAL TOTAL $ - % - % 58,867 $ 208,753 $ 216,995 § 216,995 3.45%

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS $ 2491749 § 2,204314 § 2,116,492 § 2,697,851 § 3,004,354 § 3,004,354 11.36%

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 51




APPENDIX B FACTOR: 1.0250
Town of Groton Personnel By-Law
Wage and Classification Schedule
Fiscal Year 2023 (Effective July 1, 2022}
Grade Position Title Low High
4 Salary
40,646 50,301
Wages
19.57 24.17
5 Salary
42,967 53,129
Wages
20.68 25.57
7 Salary
49,682 62,931
Wages
24.46 30.25
3 Salary
56,401 69,834
Wages
27.12 33.57
9 Salary
57,760 71,474
Wages
2177 34.36
10 Salary
Executive Assistant to Town Manager 66,243 83,607
Wages
31.86 40.20
11 Salary
Human Resources Director 69,120 88,067
Wages
33.23 42.34
12 Salary
71,380 90,200
Wages
34.34 4337

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 52




APPENDIX B FACTOR: 1.0250
Town of Groton Personnel By-Law
Wage and Classification Schedule
Fiscal Year 2023 (Effective July 1, 2022}

Grade Position Title Low High

13 Salary
73,929 93,833

Wages
35.54 4511

14 Salary
75,500 95,552

Wages
36.30 45.94

15 Salary
77,946 96,425

Wages
37.47 46.36

16 Salary
80,762 98,200

Wages
38.83 47.21

17 Salary
90,479 111,931

Wages
43,50 53.81

18 Salary
97,848 121,094

IT Director

Wages
47.04 58.22

19 Salary
100,417 124,251

Wages
48.28 59.74

20 Salary
107,672 132,422

Wages
51.77 63.66

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant

Page 53




APPENDIX B
NON-CLASSIFIED, TEMPORARY SEASONAL AND STIPEND POSITIONS

NON-STEP AND STIPEND POSITIONS

FIRE/EMS DEPARTMENT Country Club Seasonal Employees

Call Captain: Fire 25.63 Pro Shop Staff MW *- 18,00

Call Lieutenant: Fire 25.11 Pool Staff MW - 18.00

Call Firefighter 21.97 Lifeguards MW - 19.00

Call Emergency Medical Technician 21.97 Swim Coaches MW - 24.00

Probationary Firefighter 18.30 Camp Staff MW - 18.00

Probationary Emergency Medical Technician 18.30 Counselors MW - 19.00

Call Fire Mechanic 61.50 Buildings & Grounds MW -28.00
Library Shelvers MW -19.00

MISCELLANEQUS

Veteran's Agent 6,000 ¥ - Minimum Wage

Earth Removal Inspector 2,500

Dog Officer 15,000

Animal Inspector 2,082

Animat Control Officer 2,082

Town Diarist 1.00

Keeper of the Town Clock 1.00

Per Diem Van Driver 19.13-2153

Park Ranger Minimum Wage

Graves Registration Officer 250

Emergency Management Director 4,000

Election Worker: Warden Minimum Wage

Election Worker: Precinct Clerk Minimum Wage

Election Worker: Inspectors {Checker) Minimum Wage

2022 Spring Town Meeting Warrant
Page 54




SELECT BOARD MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2022
UN-APPROVED

SB Members Present: Rebecca H. Pine, Chair; Alison S. Manugian, Vice Chair; Peter S. Cunningham, Clerk: Joshua A.

Degen, Member; John F. Reilly, Member
Also Present: Mark W. Haddad, Town Manager; Dawn Dunbar, Executive Assistant to the Town Manager

Ms. Pine called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and reviewed the agenda.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mr. Haddad said that the State had adopted the Special Act for Town Clerk to be changed from Elected to Appointed thanks
to Ms. Dunbar’s efforts to get it moved as quickly as possible through the House and Senate. He said it was on the

Governor’s desk to be signed.

Mr. Haddad read an announcement from the Town Clerk. He said that the Town Election would be held on May 24" with
polls open from 7AM to 8PM with voting to occur at The Center and Groton-Dunstable Middle School North. He said that
Sub-precinct 3A will be in effect, starting with this election. Mr. Haddad said that the affected voters will be notified by mail
in early April of their precinct change. He said that the Town ballot would have 2 ballot questions. He said that one question
was a non-binding referendum seeking public opinion about modifying the Town Seal. Mr. Haddad said that the second
question sought approval of an amendment to the Groton Town Charter to change the position of Town Clerk from elected to
appointed.

He said that the Town had accepted MGL ¢53 §18B which provides for the publication of a voter information book about
baliot questions. Mr. Haddad said that the book must contain “pro” and “con” arguments for each ballot question. He said
that as of that night they were notifying the proponents and opponents of each question of the opportunity to submit a “pro”
or “con” argument for the question. He said that arguments were limited to 150 words, and were to be submitted to the Town
Clerk adding Town Counse! would review the final wording prior to the booklets being mailed out 10 days prior to the
election. The public was asked to contact the Town Clerk at 978-448-1100 or townclerk@grotonma.gov for more specifics.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT

1. Mr. Haddad one of their goals of the Board for this year was to work with the various Non-Profits to determine if
there was a way to increase PILOT Payments to the Town. Mr. Haddad said that he formed a Town Managet's
Working Group made up of a member of the Select Board, a member of the Finance Committee, the Town
Accountant, the Treasuret/Collector, the Principal Assessor and the Executive Assistant to review this issue in more
detail. He said that one of their goals was to work with Groton Hill Music. He said that based on their meetings,
they had reached out to them and began discussions on how Groton Hill Music could help the Town develop
additional revenues. Mr. Haddad said he was extremely pleased and excited to announce that Groton Hill Music has
agreed to the establishment of a Groton Community Fund. He said that through mutual cooperation between the
parties, Groton Hill Music had agreed to establish a two ($2.00) dollar fee, to be shown on tickets as the Groton
Community Fund Fee. He said it would be added to the cost of each ticket and paid by concert-goers when they
purchase tickets to professional performances presented at Groton Hill Music Center. Mr. Haddad read the attached
press release into the record.

Ms. Lisa Fiorentino, Executive Director of Groton Hill Music, said that Groton Hill was excited to open in the
Town and become a partner with the Town. She said that they would review this regularly and was happy to be
working with the Town en this. Mr. Degen said that this had been an interesting exercise adding they had to look at
ways in which to cover their increased shared costs, such as police and fire services. He said that they tried to work
out a way that wouldn’t cost the non-profits but instead the end user. Ms. Pine thanked Groton Hill adding this was
the start of a great relationship. Ms. Pine thanked the Groton Hill Music Board members adding she looked forward
to working with probably the largest non-profit in Groton.

Page 1 of 6 March 28, 2022 Regular Session




2. Mr. Haddad said that he was pleased to report that they had reached a Tentative Agreements with IBPO, Local 522,
Groton Communications Officers on a new three-year Agreement. He said that this was the subject of an Executive
Session for review by the Board earlier. Mr. Haddad reviewed the terms of the tentative agreement. He said that the
total cost of the agreement was $52K over the three years of the contract. He respectfully requested that the Board
consider ratifying the agreement.

Mr. Degen made a motion to ratify the contract as outlined by the Town Manager. Mr. Cunningham seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

NASHOBA TECH SCHOOL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

Ms. Marlena Gilbert called the School Committee to order at 7:15pm. Members LeBlanc, Gilbert, and Kubick were present.
Mr. Kauppi called the meeting to order. He said that a committee comprised of the Groton Members of the School
Committee, the Select Board and Moderator were meeting to appoint representatives to the Nashoba Valley Technical High
School Committee with terms to run from April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2025,

Mr. Cunningham offered a nomination of My. Robert Flynn as representative. Ms. Manugian seconded the nomination. Mr.

Flynn was appointed unanimously.

Mr. Degen nominated John Ellenberger as Alternate. My. Cunningham seconded the nomination. Mr. Ellenberger was
appointed unanimously.

GROTON DUNSTABLE HIGH SCHOOL PFAS UPDATE
M. Haddad said that there were elevated levels of PFAS at the High School and why representatives of the Board of Health

and Superintendent were present.

Dr. Chesson said that they were first informed in November 2021 by the State that they had an clevated level of PFAS. John
Robichaud, the Building and Grounds Superintendent said that because of a new requirement in October, they were tested for
the first time. He said that the levels were at approximately 3 times the levels they should be. He said that they received the
same level reading in February. He said that it was substantially higher as a raw sample before going through their filtration
system. He said that there was currently no water being consumed at the high school and were trying to work with an
engineer adding that one was hard to come by right now because of the need for them. Mr. Orcutt said that without knowing
what the houses (wells) in the area were testing at, it was hard to know where this issue might be stemming from. Mr.
Haddad said that he wanted to point out that the Groton Water Department did not supply the high school with water adding
the Groton wells were tested adding the levels of PFAS were non-detected. Dr. Chesson asked if the high school was known
to be the source. Mr, Orcutt said that the collection showed a high number but that they needed more data points around the
Reedy Meadow area.

M. Fleischer of the Board of Health said that they sent about 100 letters out to the abutters but had not received any positive
test results yet. Ms. Collette said that the cost for testing was about $400 adding they sent out letters to abutters within 300
feet of the high school. Ms. Collette said that they had received about 4 test results and all had shown non-detected levels of
PFAS. Mr. Degen asked where the well was located on the high school site. Mr. Robichaud said it was out behind the
football field at least 300 feet behind it. Mr. Degen asked what fertilizer had been used in the past. Mr. Robichaud said he
would need to check on what was used prior to his employment. Mr. Degen said that he would like to know what was used
and the frequency of what had been used especially if it was sledge based milorganite. Mr. Degen said that these were the
forever chemicals and were bad for water supplies and wells. Ms. Pine said that was possibily one potential theory. Mr.
Degen said he was not saying this was the issue but wanted to rule it out.

Mr. Robert Parkin a member of the Dunstable Board of Health said he was concerned. He said that Swallow Union had
tested their water and was clear. He said that PFAS was the everlasting chemical and didn’t break down. He said that so far,
Dunstable had been clear. He said it was important that any well within so may feet of the high school be tested and those
results available to anyone, Mr. Degen suggested a conversation with the Pepperell Water District to investigate a municipal

Page 2 of & March 28, 2022 Regular Session




water connection. Mr. Orcutt said that the school district was working to procure an engineer and wanted to allow them time
to hire an engineer and do their due diligence.

Mr. Haddad said that they would want receive updates and understand what the potential costs to Groton and Dunstable
might be. Ms. Pine said she hoped there would be a high level of cooperation with sharing of the data but said that if that
wasn’t the case, that the Select Board be notified. Ms. Gilbert said that when they received the immediate requirements to
mitigate with bottled water, they were not told to not irrigate their fields by DEP.

The Board of Health and School Committee adjourned their meetings at 7:48pm.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT — Cont,

3.

Mr. Haddad said that with regard to the Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budget, they would need to make changes to
the Debt Service Budget with regard to the Excluded Debt for the Florence Roche Elementary School Project. He
said that both the Select Board and Finance Committee had agreed to permanently borrow an additional $20 million
later this Spring/Summer. Mr. Haddad said that when he developed the proposed FY 2023 Operating Budget, he
only carried an interest payment for this in FY 2023 and anticipated that the first Principal Payment on this new
bond would not be due until Fiscal Year 2024. Mr. Haddad said that due to cash flow considerations, they needed to
reevaluate this schedule and move up the bond so that the first Principal Payment would be due in April, 2023
(Fiscal Year 2023), instead of August 2023 (Fiscal Year 2024). Mr. Haddad said that this would allow them to begin
collecting the additional tax revenue on the bond in January, 2023, instead of January, 2024. Mr. Haddad said that
August, 2023 would see significant expenditures by the Town (first quarterly payment to the Groton Dunstable
Regional School District, annual payment to the Middlesex County Retirement Board, and other Debt Service
Payments, on top of normal bills) and adding a Principal Payment of almost $1 million would put the Town in a
position where it would most likely need a Tax Anticipation Note, at an additional cost to the taxpayers, in order to
cover their bills. He said that moving this up would avoid that issue. Mr. Haddad said that making this payment next
April, 2023 would require the Town to increase the FY 2023 Excluded Debt Budget by $812,000. He said that this
would increase the anticipated tax rate by $0.38 and increase the anticipated average tax bill by $203 (raising the
overall anticipated increase in the average tax bill by $621).

Mr. Degen said that they were going to phase this in a little slower but were now needing to start it a bit sooner than
what they had planned. Mr. Haddad said that the Finance Committee would be meeting again to vote on the budget
which would be adding this $812,000.

Mr. Haddad said that he had been approached by the Destination Groton Committee with a request for funding in
both Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 to assist them in carrying out their Charge. He said that they were looking for
$15,000 in FY 2022 (which could be handled by a line-item transfer) and $12,600 in FY 2023 (which could be
added to the Town Manager's Budget). He said that he had discussed this with the Finance Committee and they had
given their preliminary approval of these requests, subject to approval by the Select Board. Mr. Haddad said that the
Committee had been working very hard over the last few months and needed some funding to help promote tourism
and leverage toward potential grants they could hopefully apply for in early 2023. Mr. Haddad asked the Board for

their support.

Ms. Manugian asked how they would leverage funds against grants adding she hadn’t seen them budget for things
like that before. Mr. Haddad said that they had gone to Town Meeting to request for things like this. Mr, Greg
Sheldon said that there was a state grant called the Destination Capital Grant that would pay for infrastructure
related to increases in tourism. He said that they needed to demonstrate $15K in FY22 and FY23 toward tourism in
order to qualify for funding next February/March and announce awards in June. Mr. Sheldon said that there were
reasons to come to Groton such as trails and historic infrastructure that the grant would help them with. Ms.
Manugian said that they also didn’t know what kind of grant they would be applying for yet. Mr. Sheldon said that
they did not because they were so early in their process. He said that they wanted to produce marketing material, a
marketing video, etc. adding they were confident that they would spend $15K prudently. Ms. Pine said that they had
also talked about professional paid staff time when they set up the Committee originally.

Page 3 of 6 March 28, 2022 Regular Session




Mr. Prest said that they needed to show their support to the Destination Groton Committee adding when he was on
the Economic Development Committee, they didn’t have anything to grasp their teeth on like this Committee did.

Mr. Robertson said that money being requested might or might not yield anything but added they all agreed to
support this Committee. He said that the grant would be the icing on the cake adding they needed to put their stake
in the ground now. Mr. Degen said that he fully supported the creation of the committee but wasn’t sure about
spending money without knowing what the measurement of return would be. He asked how the video and media
blitz would create additional economic development. Mr. Sheldon said that the report published last September
addressed those challenges and possibilities. Mr. Cunningham asked going forward what type of budget they would
be looking at. Mr. Sheldon said that their report ultimately called for a full-time position to manage Groton’s
economic development as a destination community. Ms. Manugian said she wasn’t opposed to this in the bigger
picture but instead needed more information before approving this. Ms. Elliott said that the videos were going to
attract commercial and housing growth. She said that their first area of concentration would be downtown and the
empty spaces where growth could be seen. Mr. Sheldon said that the Committee was putting forward its best foot
with these videos and its interviews of about 20 committees. He said that they were also going to produce vertical
videos showing Groton’s conservation, historical resources, etc. Mr. Degen said that it was a great idea but didn’t
like this being dropped on them. He said that they should have considered a grant from the CPC and done this as
part of the overall budget purpose. Mr. Degen said he would not be averse to opening up the warrant and letting the
voters weigh in on this. Mr. Haddad said that in fairness to the Committee, they were not set up until late December
and started meeting a month and a half ago which was well after the proposed budget had been submitted.

Ms. Manugian said she couldn’t approve funding requests for projects that were yet to be determined. Mr.
Cunningham said that he was generally in support of this adding a piece of this was promoting the community. Ms.
Pine said that the CPC process started in November adding this committee had not been formed yet. She said she
wasn’t sure slowing the committee down was in their best interest. Ms. Manugian said it wasn’t the amount but
what the funds were being used toward, Mr, Reilly said that they needed to invest in their own community before
the state would invest in their community. He said he understood what had been said but was in favor of this. He
said that they would get a benefit out of these videos.

Mr. Haddad asked the Board to make a motion to support spending of $15K in FY22 and support the expenditure of
$12,600 in FY23 for Destination Groton Commnittee.

Mr. Cunningham moved that they approve the $15,000 FY22 request for a line-ifem iransfer for the Destination
Groton Committee. Mr. Reilly seconded the motion. The motion carried 3-2 in favor with Ms. Manugian and Mr.

Degen opposed.

5. Mr. Haddad said that with regard to the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Capital Budget, Tom Delaney had informed him
that the two trucks (pick-up truck and intermediate truck) he had in the Capital Plan were in stock and could be
reserved for a month or so, but could not be held until July. He said that the local dealer (who was a Groton
resident) would hold them if the Town agreed to buy them in May adding that if not, they would see an anticipated
increase of 20% in July with the new state contract and a delivery date that could be out 18 months. Mr. Haddad
said that based on this, he would like to change the Capital Budget Article to read as follows:

"To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, andlor borrow pursuant to any
applicable statute, a sum or sums of money, to be expended by the Town Manager in Fiscal Year 2022 and
thereafier, for the purpose of funding the Fiscal Year 2023 Capital Budget, or o take any other action relative

thereto.”

He said that the would allow them to buy the two trucks should Town Meeting approve the appropriation and asked
the Board to consider approving this.

Page 4 of 6 March 28, 2022 Regular Session




Myr. Cunningham moved to approve the expenditure of the 2 trucks in FY22 as outlined by the Town Manager. Mr.
Degen seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

6. Mr. Haddad reviewed the Board’s meeting schedule.

SELECT BOARD ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
. Mr. Haddad said that Select Board Member Cunningham had proposed that the Select Board adopt a Proclamation

in support of the Sovereign Nation of Ukraine and its people. He asked the Select Board to adopt the proclamation
as presented if they were so inclined. Ms. Pine thanked Mr. Cunningham for bringing this forward and thought it

was completely appropriate.

Mr. Degen moved to approve the proclamation as written. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion

carried unanimousiy.

2. Mr. Haddad said that the Playground area behind the Prescott School had not been used for many years. He said that
the Park Commission was willing to take over the oversight of this area. He said that in order for that to happen, the
Select Board needed to approve the transfer of the oversight to the Park Commission. Mr. Haddad respectfully
requested that the Board take this action.

Mr. Degen said that he was not comfortable with this adding it was their ultimate plan to look at instailing a
municipal lot behind Prescott School. He said that by giving this piece of land to the Park Commission gave the
Select Board’s purview away. Mr. Cunningham said that the ownership control didn’t change but instead just the
oversight. Mr, Haddad said that they were not transferring the deed which Mr. Degen made a valid point about. Mr.
Haddad suggested that the motion state that the land oversight be brought back to the Board should they need to
lock at other options for it.

My, Degen moved that the Select Board grant permission to the Park Commission for oversight but not control of
the playground and all equipment contained within the boundaries of the Prescoit parcel until such time as the
Select Board terminates oversight. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

3, Mr. Haddad said that for many years, they had discussed the potential of reconstructing Broadmeadow Road to
alleviate the flooding and periodic closings of the Road. He said that they were in the process of filing the necessary
paperwork with the Conservation Commission for approval to conduct some maintenance dredging of James Brook.
He said that they would like to hire an engineer to design plans for the reconstruction of the road. He said that these
plans could be used to apply for State and Federal Grants. He said that the estimated cost for this design was
approximately $100,000. Mr. Haddad said that he would like to use ARPA Funds for this purpose. He said that
since these were Federal Funds, they would have to go out to bid to procure engineering services for this purpose.
He said that while these services were ordinarily exempt under Massachusetts Law, they were not under Federal
Law. Mr. Haddad asked for permission to advertise for engineering services and come back to the Board with actual
cost for their approval of the use of ARPA Funds.

Mr. Degen said this would be a great use of ARPA funds adding this project was a long time coming.

Mr. Degen moved that they authorize the Town Manager to put ouf an RFP for engineering services lo correct
flooding issues on Broadmeadow Road using ARPA funds and fo bring back cost proposals for the Select Board to
discuss. Mr. Cunninghain seconded the motion.

Ms. Manugian asked what the ultimate goal was for Broadmeadow.

The motion carried 4-1 with Ms. Manugian opposed.

Page 5 of 6 March 28, 2022 Regular Session




4. Mr. Haddad said that he had provided the Board with a draft comment letter to the Massachusetts Department of
Housing and Community Development on the MBTA Housing Choice Zoning Legislation. He said that this letter
had been amended from the original letter he sent out fast week based on feedback from various Board membets.
Mr. Haddad said that based on feedback from their Housing Coordinator, they had amended the letter to remove any
reference on the "character of the Town". Mr. Haddad asked the Board to consider approving this letter.

Mr. Haddad asked for a motion to approve the letter and authorize the Chair to sign the letter to be submitted to
Mass Department of Housing and Community Development on MBTA Housing Choice Zoning Legislation.

Mr. Cunningham made the motion. Ms. Manugian seconded the motion. The motion carvied 4-1 with Mr. Degen

opposed.
Mr. Degen said he was opposed to this adding he thought this legislation was being crammed down their throats.

5. Ms. Pine said that they had reached a three-year agreement between the Town Manager and the Town. She said that
they went through a process whereas the salary was below the average based on a salary survey. She said that they
focused on compensation in order to retain their Town Manager and retain competitive. She said that they shifted
the car allowance into the base salary and ended up with salary amounts of $160K in the first year, $165K in the
second year and $170K in the third year. Mr. Degen said that Mr. Haddad was being compensated less than
comparable towns. He said that Mr. Haddad took a zero last year and thought this was a fair and equitable salary for
both the Town Manager and the taxpayers. He said that he thought the Town Manager deserved this as did the

Board.

Mr. Degen moved to enter info a contract with Mark Haddad for a 3-year term beginning July 1, 2022-June 30,
2025 as stipulated in the confract. Mr. Reilly seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

ON-GOING ISSUES

A: Mr. Haddad said that the Water Department had their kick off meeting carlier that day with the contractor for their water
treatment plant.

D: Mr. Haddad said that the Flo Ro Building Project contractor met with the Planning Board last week which was a good
meeting. He said that they continued the hearing until April 7% and were hoping to get mobilized on April 11%. He said that
the Earth Removal Committee would be meeting with the contractor on April 5" adding Tom Delaney would be taking as
much of the material as he could.

Ms, Pine said that the citizens petitioner, Jeffrey Brem came before the Planning Board last week. Mr. Haddad said that there
were signatures required to change the wording, He said that if the Moderator allowed the amended wording within the four
corners it could be done on the floor of town meeting. Mr. Haddad said that the Moderator did not think the wording was in
the four corners. Mr. Haddad said that the cleanest way was to have the 10 signers of the petition sign a new petition with the
updated wording, have the Select Board accept the wording and the Planning Board would hold a public hearing on April
28 He said that this limited any interpretation.

MINUTES
Ms. Manugian moved to approve the minutes of the regularly scheduled meeting on March 14, 2022, Mr. Reilly seconded the

wotion. The motion carried unanimously.

Ms. Pine adjourned the meeting at 9.06pm.

Approved:
Peter S. Cunningham, Clerk respectfully submitted.
Dawn Dunbar,
Executive Assistant to the Town Manager
Date Approved:

Page 6 of 6 March 28, 2022 Regular Session






